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We are pleased to transmit the Single Audit of the State of Alaska for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2018. The audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and complies with the United States Office of 
Management and Budget' s Uniform Guidance. 

The report includes an opinion on the basic financial statements of the State of Alaska for 
FY 18, findings and recommendations on financial and compliance matters, required auditor' s 
reports on internal controls and compliance, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards. 

The findings and recommendations included in this report are organized by department and 
include prior fmancial and compliance findings not fully corrected by the departments. Our 
FY 17 single audit contained 78 findings; this report presents a total of74 findings, 28 of which 
were presented, at least in part, last year. With your active support and encouragement, we 
hope to see improvement in the implementation of corrective action for these fmdings by the 
State agencies. 

We would like to acknowledge the professional assistance and cooperation of the Department 
of Administration's Division of Finance. The division has a strong professional commitment 



Members of the Legislature 
Governor Dunleavy 
Inspector General Levinson 

- 2- AprillO, 2019 

to excellence in financial accounting and reporting for the State of Alaska. Its continued efforts 
toward resolving statewide accounting and reporting concerns are commendable. 

The dedicated staff of the Division of Legislative Audit remains committed to improving the 
financial accountability of the State of Alaska. Your active involvement is critical to improving 
that accountability. We are available to assist you in that effort. 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLA'IURE 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 
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Division of Legislative Audit 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Members of the Legislative Budget 
and Audit Committee: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

P.O. Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

(907) 465-3830 
FAX (907) 465-2347 
legaudit@akleg.gov 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Alaska, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the State's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
did not audit the financial statements of: Alaska Permanent Fund; International Airports Fund; 
University of Alaska; Alaska Housing Finance Corporation; Alaska Industrial Development 
and Export Authority; Alaska Railroad Corporation; Alaska Energy Authority; Alaska 
Municipal Bond Bank Authority; Alaska Clean Water Fund; Alaska Drinking Water Fund; 
Retiree Health Fund; the Invested Assets Under the Investment Authority of the Commissioner 
of Revenue; and the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds, except for Alaska 
National Guard and Alaska Naval Militia Retirement Fund. As shown on the following page, 
those financial statements reflect assets and revenues of the indicated opinion units. 
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Percent of Percent of 
Opinion Unit Assets Revenues 
Governmental Activities 89% 50% 
Business-Type Activities 77% 68% 
Aggregate Discretely Presented 

Component Units 91% 92% 
Major Funds: 

General Fund 78% 1% 
Alaska Permanent Fund 100% 100% 
Alaska International Airports 100% 100% 

Aggregate Remaining 
Fund Infonnation 92% 87% 

Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and 
our opinions, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those accounts, funds, retirement 
plans, and component units, are based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. Certain entities of the State of Alaska were not 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. These entities include: the Alaska 
Municipal Bond Bank Authority (a discretely presented component unit); the Retiree Health 
Fund (a proprietary fund) ; the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds, except for 
Alaska National Guard and Alaska Naval Militia Retirement Fund (fiduciary funds); and 
Invested Assets Under the Investment Authority of the Commissioner of the Department of 
Revenue (certain cash and investment accounts). 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLATURL DIVISION Of LEGISLATIVE AlJDII 



I - 3 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on General Fund 

State of Alaska's General Fund rents and royalties are not reported in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and management declined to correct the 
misstatements. Misstatements include an overstatement to General Fund royalty revenues of 
$99.8 million and an understatement of $99.8 million due to other funds. The misstatement 
was caused by the Department ofNatural Resources ' failure to transfer all statutorily dedicated 
revenues to the Alaska Permanent Fund. The statutory dedications of royalty revenues are 
required by law to be deposited in the Permanent Fund. 

Note 2, relating to the State's Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund, a subfund of the General 
Fund, also referred to as the State's rainy day fund or savings account, is materially misstated 
by $1.46 billion and management declined to coiTect the misstatement. The overstatement is 
the result of not correcting for the $99.8 million misstatement discussed above and the State 
attorney general 's guidance to the Department of Revenue and the Department of Natural 
Resources that taxes, royalties, and interest received as a result of decisions by the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission are not required to be deposited in the Constitutional Budget 
Reserve Fund. Historically the receipts have been deposited in the Constitutional Budget 
Reserve Fund. Additionally, taxes due as a result of Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
decisions were permitted to be offset against tax credits owed to taxpayers which further 
misstated the Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund balance. The attorney general further 
asserted that similar monies received in prior years that were deposited in the Constitutional 
Budget Reserve Fund should be reclassified as General Fund monies thereby reducing the 
amount that the General Fund must repay the Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund in the future. 
Legal analysis does not support the attorney general's position. The failure to properly deposit 
monies received during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and the reclassification of prior 
year monies violates state law and provides misleading information to users of the frnancial 
statements. 

Qualified Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, except for the effects of the 
matter described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinions on General Fund" paragraph, the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the General Fund information of the State of Alaska, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective 
changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unmodified Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, Alaska Permanent Fund, Alaska International Airports, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the State of Alaska, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective 
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changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the State of Alaska adopted the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. As a result of the 
implementation of this standard, the State of Alaska reported a restatement for the change in 
accounting principle (see Note 14). Our auditors ' opinion was not modified with respect to the 
restatement. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison and the Corresponding 
Notes, and Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans Information, as listed in the 
Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We, and the other auditors, have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management 's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the infom1ation because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the State of Alaska's basic financial statements. The Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule ofExpenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLATURE DIVISION OF LEGISLATIVE AUDII 
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procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our 
opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of 
the other auditors, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
February 19,2019, on our consideration of the State of Alaska's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the State of Alaska's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the State 
of Alaska's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Juneau, Alaska 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 

February 19, 2019 except for our report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, 
which is dated April 5, 2019. 
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Sec. 37.13.010. Alaska permanent fund.

(a) Under art. IX, sec. 15, of the state constitution, there is established as a separate 
fund the Alaska permanent fund. The Alaska permanent fund consists of 

(1) 25 percent of all mineral lease rentals, royalties, royalty sale proceeds, net 
profit shares under AS 38.05.180 (f) and (g), and federal mineral revenue sharing 
payments received by the state from mineral leases issued on or before  
December 1, 1979, and 25 percent of all bonuses received by the state from mineral 
leases issued on or before February 15, 1980; 

(2) 50 percent of all mineral lease rentals, royalties, royalty sale proceeds, 
net profit shares under AS 38.05.180 (f) and (g), and federal mineral revenue 
sharing payments received by the state from mineral leases issued after  
December 1, 1979, and 50 percent of all bonuses received by the state from mineral 
leases issued after February 15, 1980; and… 
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing 
Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Members of the Legislative Budget 
and Audit Committee: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
State of Alaska as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the State of Alaska's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated February 19, 2019. Our report is qualified for the General 
Fund due to an overstatement of General Fund royalty revenues of $99.8 million, and an 
understatement of$99.8 million due to other funds. Additionally, note 2, relating to the State's 
Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund, a subfund of the General Fund, is materially misstated 
by $1.46 bil1ion. Further discussion of the General Fund opinion qualification is contained in 
Section I of this report in the financial opinion sections titled Basis for Qualified Opinion on 
General Fund, and Qual~fied Opinions . 

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the: 
Alaska Pennanent Fund; International Airports Fund; University of Alaska; Alaska Housing 
Finance Corporation; Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority; Alaska Railroad 
Corporation; Alaska Energy Authority; Alaska Municipal Bond Bank Authority; Alaska Clean 
Water Fund; Alaska Drinking Water Fund; Retiree Health Fund; the Invested Assets Under 
the Investment Authority of the Commissioner of Revenue; and the Pension and Other 
Employee Benefit Trust Funds, except for Alaska National Guard and Alaska Naval Militia 
Retirement Fund, as described in our report on the State of Alaska's financial statements in 
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Section I. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal 
control over fmancial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately 
by those auditors. 

Certain entities of the State of Alaska were not audited in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. These entities include: the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank Authority (a 
discretely presented component unit); the Retiree Health Fund (a proprietary fund); the 
Invested Assets Under the Investment Authority of the Commissioner of Revenue (certain cash 
and investment accounts); and the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds, except 
for Alaska National Guard and Alaska Naval Militia Retirement Fund (fiduciary funds). 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the State of 
Alaska 's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the State of Alaska's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the State of Alaska's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in 
Section ll - Findings and Questioned Costs, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses 
and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements wil1 not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described 
in the preceding Section ll - Findings and Questioned Costs, Finding Nos. 2018-015, 
2018-053,2018-054, and 2018-074 to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the preceding 
Section II - Findings and Questioned Costs, Finding Nos. 2018-001 through 2018-011, 
2018-016, 2018-017, 2018-022, 2018-038, 2018-046, 2018-055 , 2018-056, and 2018-067 
through 2018-071 to be significant deficiencies. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State of Alaska's basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the basic financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the preceding 
Section II- Findings and Questioned Costs, Finding Nos. 2018-015, 2018-053, 2018-054, 
and 2018-074. 

Additionally, we noted certain other matters which are described in the preceding Section ll
Findings and Questioned Costs. Our findings for these instances are identified in the Summary 
of Findings table under Other State Issues. 

State of Alaska's Response to Findings 

The State agencies' responses to the findings identified in our audit are included in the 
succeeding Section IV - Corrective Action Plan. The State agencies' responses were not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the State of Alaska's internaJ control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the State 
of Alaska's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

Juneau, Alaska 
February 19, 2019 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLATURE 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Required by the Unifom1 Guidance 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Members of the Legislative Budget 
and Audit Committee: 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the State of Alaska's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the United States Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 201 8. The State of Alaska's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the State of Alaska's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We did not audit the federal programs of the University of Alaska, Alaska Housing Finance 
Corporation, Alaska Railroad Corporation, Alaska Energy Authority, Alaska Clean Water Fund, 
Alaska Drinking Water Fund, Alaska Student Loan Corporation, and Alaska Seafood Marketing 
Institute. As shown in the table on the following page, the audits of those entities and funds reflect 
the following percent of major federal program expenditures. 
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Percent of Major 
Federal Program 

CFDA Federal Program Title Expenditures 

10.410 Very Low to Moderate Income Housing Loans 100% 

I 0.601 Market Access Program 100% 

14.117 Mortgage Insurance_ Homes 100% 

66.458 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 100% 

66.468 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 100% 

84.032L Federal Family Education Loans (Lenders) 100% 

90.100 Denali Commission Program 90% 

Various Federal Transit Cluster 100% 

Various Research and Development Cluster 100% 

The above federal programs were audited by other auditors whose reports were furnished to us, 
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the compliance requirements applicable to those programs, 
is based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, 1 issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the State of 
Alaska's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the State of 
Alaska's compliance. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on US Forest Service (USFS) Fire Suppression (CFDA lO.UOS, 
10.U09, and lO.UlO) 

As described in the preceding Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the State of Alaska 
did not comply with requirements regarding USFS Fire Suppression (CFDA 10.U08, 10.U09 
and lO.UlO) as described in Finding Nos. 2018-057 and 2018-059 for Allowable Costs/Cost 
Principles. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the State of 
Alaska to comply with requirements applicable to that program. 

1 The standards applicable to financial audits are in chapters 1-4 of Government Auditing Standards. 
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Qualified Opinion on US Forest Service (USFS) Fire Suppression (CFDA 10.U08, 10.U09, 
and lO.UlO) 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the State of Alaska complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on USFS Fire 
Suppression (CFDA 10.U08, 10.U09, and 10.Ul0) for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Fire Suppression 
(CFDA 15.U04, 15.U05, 15.U06, and 15.U07) 

As described in the preceding Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the State of Alaska 
did not comply with requirements regarding BLM Fire Suppression (CFDA 15.U04, 15.U05, 
15.U06, and 15.U07) as described in Finding No. 2018-062 for Allowable Costs/Cost Principles. 
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the State of Alaska to comply 
with requirements applicable to that program. 

Qualified Opinion on Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Fire Suppression (CFDA 
15.U04, 15.U05, 15.U06, and 15.U07) 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the State of Alaska complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on BLM Fire 
Suppression (CFDA 15.U04, 15.U05, 15.U06, and 15.U07) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on 1332 State Innovation Waivers (CFDA 93.423) 

As described in the preceding Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the State of Alaska 
did not comply with requirements regarding 1332 State Innovation Waivers (CFDA 93.423) as 
described in Finding No. 2018-044 for Procurement and Suspension and Debarment, and Finding 
No. 2018-045 for Subrecipient Monitoring. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in 
our opinion, for the State of Alaska to comply with requirements applicable to that program. 

Qualified Opinion on 1332 State Innovation Waivers (CFDA 93.423) 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the State of Alaska complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 1332 State 
Innovation Waivers (CFDA 93.423) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 

ALASKA S"l ArE LEGISLATURE III- 7 DIVISION OF LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 



Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 
Cluster (CFDA 93.558) 

As described in the preceding Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the State of Alaska 
did not comply with requirements regarding the T ANF Cluster (CFDA 93.558) as described in 
Finding No. 2018-028 for Eligibility, and Finding Nos. 2018-028 and 2018-030 for Special Tests 
and Provisions. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the State of 
Alaska to comply with requirements applicable to that program. 

Qualified Opinion on the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (T ANF) Cluster 
(CFDA 93.558) 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the State of Alaska complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the T ANF Cluster 
(CFDA 93.558) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 

In our opinion, the State of Alaska complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other 
major federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanymg Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required 
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. These instances are listed in the 
accompanying Summary of Findings table and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and 
described in detail in Section ll - Findings and Recommendations as items 2018-019, 2018-023 
through 2018-026, 2018-028 through 2018-036, 2018-041 through 2018-043, 2018-047, 
2018-049 through 20 18-051, 2018-061 , and 2018-064 through 2018-066. Our opinion on each 
major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters except for the impact of item 
2018-028 on the T ANF Cluster for Eligibility and Special Tests and Provisions and 2018-030 on 
the TANF Cluster for Special Tests and Provisions. 

State agencies ' responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are included in 
Section IV - Corrective Action Plan. State agencies' responses were not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
responses. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the State of Alaska is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the State of Alaska's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the State of Alaska's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed 
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in 
Part ill of the accompanying Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs and described in detail 
in Section II - Findings and Recommendations as items 2018-024, 2018-028, 2018-044, 
2018-045, 2018-057, and 20 18-062 to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in Part III of the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and described in detail in Section II- Findings and 
Recommendations as items 2018-020, 2018-023, 2018-027 through 2018-033, 2018-041 through 
2018-043, 2018-047, 2018-048, 2018-050, 2018-058, 2018-060, 2018-065, and 2018-066 to be 
significant deficiencies. 

State agencies' responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit 
are included in Section IV- Corrective Action Plan. State agencies' responses were not subject 

AI ASKA STAT E LEGISLATURI:: 111-9 DIVISION OF LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 



to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the responses. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Juneau, Alaska 
AprilS, 2019 

A LASKA Sl A rF I EGISLATURE 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 
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STATE OF ALASKA 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Note 1:  Purpose of the Schedule 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) requires a schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
showing total federal financial assistance for the period covered in the financial statements.  Each federal 
financial assistance program must be identified by its Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) title 
and number.  When CFDA information is not available, another federal identifying number must be used. 
 
Note 2:  Significant Accounting Policies 
A. Reporting Entity - The accompanying schedule includes the federal financial assistance programs 

administered by the State of Alaska for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.   
 
B. Fiscal Year Ends - The State of Alaska and component units of the State are reported using fiscal 

years, which end on June 30, except the Alaska Railroad Corporation whose fiscal year ends December 
31. 

 
C. Basis of Accounting – The schedules were prepared using the modified accrual method of accounting.  

Some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the 
preparation of, the basic financial statements.  Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent 
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in 
prior years. 

 
D. Basis of Presentation - The accompanying schedule presents expenditures of federal awards for each 

federal financial assistance program in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.  Federal program titles 
are reported as presented in the CFDA whenever possible. 

 
Expenditures of Federal Awards - As defined in the Uniform Guidance, federal financial assistance 
means assistance provided by a federal agency in the form of grants, loans, loan guarantees, property 
(including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food 
commodities, or direct appropriations.  However, it does not include direct federal cash assistance to 
individuals.  Federal financial assistance includes awards received directly from federal agencies, or 
indirectly through other units of state and local government and private nonprofit agencies.  
 
Program Clusters – The OMB Compliance Supplement identifies programs to be considered clusters of 
programs for auditing purposes.  These clusters consist of related programs that share common 
compliance requirements. 

 
Note 3:  Indirect Cost Rate 
The State of Alaska has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 
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STATE OF ALASKA 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Note 4:  Federal Surplus Property Program 
All assistance provided to the Federal Surplus Property Program is in the form of donations of excess property 
to the Department of Administration, Division of General Services.  In FY2018 the State processed federal 
property valued at $6,040,080 donors acquisition cost.  For Uniform Guidance purposes, the donated property 
is valued at 22.47% of donors cost.  This is the expenditure amount shown on the schedule as $1,357,206.  
The ending inventory at June 30, 2018, carried at the donors' acquisition cost was $3,340,778.  (CFDA 39.003) 
 
Note 5:  WIC Rebates  
During FY2018, the Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) earned cash rebates of $2,449,166 
from infant formula manufacturers on sales of formula to participants in the WIC Program.  Rebate 
contracts with infant formula manufacturers are authorized by 7 CFR 246.16(a) as a cost containment 
measure.  Rebates represent a reduction of expenditures previously incurred for WIC food benefit costs.  
Applying the rebates received to such costs enables DHSS to extend program benefits to approximately 
3,001 more persons than could have been served this fiscal year in the absence of the rebate contract.  The 
number of additional persons provided benefits was determined by dividing the total amount of program 
benefits by the total annual case load to determine average individual benefits.  Total rebate dollars were 
then divided by the average benefit, determining the increased food instruments issued.  This result is 
divided by 12 months.  (CFDA 10.557) 
 
The U.S. Department of Agriculture requires a cash basis approach for reporting WIC rebates on the 798 
reports; however, food benefits continue to be reported on the accrual basis.  Based on the FY2018 WIC 
798 report, the infant formula rebates were $2,636,420 resulting in additional clients served totaling 3,231.  
All other reporting requirements for the WIC 798 are the same. 
 
Note 6:  Loans 
A. Alaska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) Loan Guarantee Programs - During the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 2018, AHFC owned mortgage loans with various federal insurance and guarantee 
agreements covering future losses.  Coverage under the Veterans Affairs Mortgage Guarantee is subject 
to a loss limit.  The principal balances of loans covered under these federal programs at June 30, 2018, 
are: 

CFDA 10.410 Farmers Home Administration Mortgage Insurance $    124,520,912 
CFDA 14.117 HUD FHA Mortgage Insurance 230,287,407 
CFDA 14.865 HUD Loan Guarantees for Indian Housing 122,127,121 
CFDA 64.114 Department of Veterans' Affairs Mortgage Guarantees  53,284,604 
 Total Loan Guarantees and Insurance Programs: $     530,220,044 

 
B. Last Resort Housing Loans - The Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT/PF) 

made last resort housing loans in compliance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Act.  FY2018 loan disbursements are $0.  Loans outstanding at June 30, 2018, totaled 
$23,547.  Federal share of principal is $22,221.  (CFDA 20.205) 
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STATE OF ALASKA 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

C. Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) - FFELP loans are governed by the Higher 
Education Act (Act).  The Act provides for federal: (a) insurance or reinsurance of eligible loans, (b) 
interest subsidy payment to eligible lenders with respect to certain subsidized loans (Stafford and 
Consolidation), and (c) special allowance payments (net of excess interest) paid by the Secretary of the 
U.S. Department of Education to holders of eligible loans.  FFELP loan guarantees outstanding at year 
end were $58,398,159.  Claim payments in the amount of $4,769,809 were received during the fiscal 
year.  (CFDA 84.032L) 

 
D. Economic Adjustment Assistance Revolving Loan Fund - The U.S. Department of Commerce 

funds the Economic Adjustment Assistance Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) for the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development.  The RLF is used for business lending in Alaska.  
The federal share of the RLF as of June 30, 2018, totals $7,586,305 and is comprised of the following 
balances: $3,615,245 in loans outstanding, $3,568,820 in cash and investments, $51,946 in administrative 
expenses, and $350,294 in loans written off during the FY2018.  The new loans disbursed in FY2018 
and current year administrative expenses total $51,946.  (CFDA 11.307) 

 
E. Federal Direct Student Loans –The University of Alaska is responsible for the performance of certain 

administrative duties with respect to the Federal Direct Student Loan Program.  Amounts relating to 
this program are not included in the University's basic financial statements.  Loans distributed to 
students of the University under this program (CFDA 84.268) during the year ended June 30, 2018 are 
summarized as follows: 

 Amount Disbursed
Direct Subsidized Loan $ 17,741,652
Direct Unsubsidized Loan    29,491,578
Direct PLUS Loan     3,997,110
   Total: $ 51,230,340

 
Note 7:  Unemployment Insurance 
Federal participation in FY2018 Unemployment Insurance benefits was $4,297,628.  Federal participation 
for program administration was $23,037,761.  UI benefits paid by the State during FY2018 were 
$125,088,944.  (CFDA 17.225) 
 
Note 8:  Petroleum Violation Escrow 
The U.S. Department of Energy programs were funded in part by Petroleum Violation Escrow (PVE) 
funds.  These expenditures are not included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.  PVE 
funds represent the State of Alaska's share of settlement proceeds in various lawsuits between the Federal 
Government and oil producers.  During the year ended June 30, 2018, Alaska Housing Finance Corporation 
expended $5,532 from the trust fund in support of Department of Energy programs.  (CFDA 81.041)  
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Department of Administration
KELLY C. TSHIBAKA, COMMISSIONER

10th Fl. State Office Building
P.O. Box 110200

Juneau, Alaska  99811-0200
Main: (907) 465-2200

Fax: (907) 465-2135
www.doa.alaska.gov

 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

Report: 02-40012-12 

Finding Number:  31 
Fiscal Year: 2011 
Initial Finding Year: 2011 
 
Federal Agency: USDHS 
State Agency:  DMVA 
 
CFDA:  97.036 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The DMVA DAS director should develop and implement procedures to 
ensure Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 
reports are submitted. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially corrected.  Due to various issues, FFATA reports were 
submitted untimely and DMVA staff did not retain printouts of the submitted 
reports to document submission during FY2018.  The DMVA Finance 
Officer and Homeland Security & Emergency Management Administrative 
Operations Manager is continuing to strengthen procedures over timeliness of 
FFATA reporting, to include retention of documentation for FY2019. 

Report: 02-40013-13 

Finding Number:  32 
Fiscal Year: 2012 
Initial Finding Year: 2011 
 
Federal Agency: USDHS 
State Agency:  DMVA 
 
CFDA:  97.036, 97.067 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DAS’ director should develop and implement procedures to ensure Federal 
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) reports are submitted 
timely and accurately. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40012-12 #31.  Please refer to the updated response on 
finding 02-40012-12 #31. 

Report: 02-40014-14 

Finding Number:  18 
Fiscal Year: 2013 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.568 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
LIHEAP’s manager should ensure the LIHEAP State Plan complies with 
federal requirements.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Report: 02-40014-14 

Finding Number:  33 
Fiscal Year: 2013 
Initial Finding Year: 2011 
 
Federal Agency: USDHS 
State Agency:  DMVA 
 
CFDA:  97.036, 97.067 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Division of Administrative Services (DAS) director should develop and 
implement procedures to ensure Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act (FFATA) reports are accurately submitted. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40012-12 #31 and finding 02-40013-13 #32.  Please 
refer to the updated response on finding 02-40012-12 #31. 

Report: 02-40014-14 

Finding Number:  43 
Fiscal Year: 2013 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: EPA 
State Agency:  DEC 
 
CFDA:  66.202 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEC’s finance officer should develop and implement procedures to comply 
with Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 
subaward reporting requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Report: 02-40014-14 

Finding Number:  45 
Fiscal Year: 2013 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.600, 20.613, 20.509 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s director of program development should develop and implement 
procedures to ensure compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act (FFATA) subaward reporting requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  The delinquent reports for the Highway 
Safety Programs (CFDA 20.600 & 20.613) have been completed and written 
procedures have been developed to comply with FFATA reporting 
requirements.  

Not all reports required in FY2015, FY2016 and FY2017 for Federal Transit 
Authority CFDA 20.509 have been submitted timely.  DOTPF currently 
expects to submit the FFATA reports for FY2015, FY2016 and FY2017 by 
June 30, 2019. 

Report: 02-40014-14 

Finding Number:  49 
Fiscal Year: 2013 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.509 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s transit program manager should strengthen procedures to ensure 
federal report accuracy.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2014-016 
Fiscal Year: 2014 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency:  USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.568 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
LIHEA’s program manager should ensure the LIHEA State Plan complies 
with federal requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40014-14 #18.  Refer to the updated response with 
finding 02-40014-14 #18. 

Finding Number:  2014-019 
Fiscal Year: 2014 
Initial Finding Year: 2014 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.778 
Questioned Costs:  $21,429 

CFDA:  93.767 
Questioned Costs: $1,768,845 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS’ commissioner should take action to implement effective controls to 
ensure Medicaid claims are processed accurately and timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected pending resolution of questioned 
costs.  The department anticipates the questioned costs will be resolved in 
FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2014-025 
Fiscal Year: 2014 
Initial Finding Year: 2011 
 
Federal Agency: USDHS 
State Agency:  DMVA 
 
CFDA:  97.036, 97.039, 97.067 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Division of Administrative Services’ (DAS) director should develop and 
implement procedures to ensure Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA) reports comply with federal reporting 
requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40012-12 #31, finding 02-40013-13 #32 and finding 02-
40014-14 #33.  Please refer to the updated response with finding 02-40012-12 
#31. 

Finding Number:  2014-031 
Fiscal Year: 2014 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.509 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s program development director should ensure compliance with the 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) subaward 
reporting requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40014-14 #45.  Please refer to the updated response on 
finding 02-40014-14 #45. 
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Finding Number:  2014-032 
Fiscal Year: 2014 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.509 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s program development director should develop and implement 
procedures to ensure accurate federal reporting. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40014-14 #49.  Please refer to the updated response on 
finding 02-40014-14 #49. 

Finding Number:  2015-002 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure expenses and deferred outflows related to 
pensions are accurately reported in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR). 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is fully resolved. 

Finding Number:  2015-008 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure procedures are followed to accurately 
report financial activity of the Statutory Budget Reserve Fund (SBRF) and the 
Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF). 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is fully resolved. 

Finding Number:  2015-019 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2014 
 
State Agency:  DHSS 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS’ commissioner should work with Xerox to correct defects in the Alaska 
Health Enterprise (AHE) system. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 

Finding Number:  2015-023 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.767 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Management should reconcile program revenue and expenditures as part of 
the SEFA preparation process to ensure amounts reported are based on 
current year eligible expenditures and all reconciling items are clearly identified 
and documented. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  FMS continues to update its 
procedures to ensure all accounts, accruals, and reconciliations are reviewed 
and documented on a periodic basis.  The department anticipates this finding 
will be corrected in FY2019. 
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Finding Number:  2015-024 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.069 
Questioned Costs:  $136,760 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Management should ensure that revenue and expenditure reconciliations for 
prior year grants, with activity in the current year, are completed timely.  
Additionally, adjustments between fiscal years and the final reconciliation for 
closed grants should be reviewed and approved by the Revenue Unit 
Supervisor in a timely manner. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected pending resolution of questioned 
costs.  The department anticipates the questioned costs will be resolved in 
FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2015-026 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.767, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS should update its policies and procedures to more clearly define a 
“timely” redetermination of Medicaid eligibility.  DHSS should also strengthen 
controls around their application processing procedures to ensure all initial 
applications are processed within the required time frame. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  DHSS Division of Public 
Assistance (DPA) continues to strengthen its strategies to work through the 
backlog of MAGI Medicaid applications, including the creation of a backlog 
team and requesting staff to work overtime.  Additionally, the eligibility 
technician positions have been exempted from state hiring restrictions 
resulting in reducing the time required to re-hire staff, and the legislature has 
approved 20 of the 41 positions requested in the FY2019 Governor’s 
amended budget. 

Finding Number:  2015-028 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.778 
Questioned Costs:  $64 

CFDA:  93.767 
Questioned Costs:  $7 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS should implement/enhance procedures that allow for review of manually 
priced claims. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  The Division of Health Care 
Services continues to monitor the corrective action plan (CAP) for its fiscal 
agent, Conduent.  The division has increased the frequency of its meetings on 
the CAP from monthly to weekly and is re-evaluating the fiscal agent’s 
processes.  The department anticipates this finding will be corrected in 
FY2019. 
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Finding Number:  2015-029 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Division of Administrative Services’ (DAS) director should ensure 
uncollectible accounts receivable in the Unemployment Compensation Fund 
(UCF) are reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  The auditors rejected DLWD’s original 
methodology for recording an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable 
described in DLWD’s policy and procedures.  DLWD developed an 
acceptable aging methodology in November 2018, which was added to the 
CAFR through audit adjustment. 

Finding Number:  2015-030 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding 
 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD’s DAS’ director should work with the department’s finance office to 
improve accounting for UCF activity. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  In Fall 2017, a short-term 
Accountant worked with lead internal accounting positions to review current 
UCF accounting activities, identify improvements, and ensure compliance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  The department began to 
implement UCF accounting improvements based on this review during fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018.  The recording of fraud penalties as reductions to 
expenditures instead of revenue and negative fraud penalties receivable has 
been corrected.  The corrective action plan was not completed due to ongoing 
reconciliation efforts.  The remaining issues with the suspense liability are 
expected to be corrected by August 31, 2019. 

Finding Number:  2015-031 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDOI 
State Agency:  DCCED 
 
CFDA:  15.227 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DCCED’s Division of Administrative Services (DAS) and Division of 
Community and Regional Affairs (DCRA) directors should work together to 
improve procedures to ensure all federal receipts deposited into the National 
Petroleum Reserve Alaska (NPR) special revenue fund (fund) are made 
available for NPR impact mitigation program grants. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is fully corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2015-033 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDOD 
State Agency:  DMVA 
 
CFDA:  12.401 
Questioned Costs:  $1,273 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DVMA’s Army Guard Facilities Maintenance Division (ARNG FMD) 
operations manager and administrative services director (ASD) should provide 
for the training and monitoring of staff to ensure personal service 
expenditures are accurately charged to federal programs. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is partially corrected.  Adjustments were processed for the 
incorrect cost allocation plan; however, no adjustment was processed for the 
incorrect federal split charged to the program.  It is expected that the 
remaining questioned costs will be resolved by June 30, 2019. 

Finding Number:  2015-034 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s administrative services director should ensure financial transactions 
are properly coded to the correct fiscal year in the accounting system. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is partially corrected.  Corrective action was implemented 
immediately.  Additional training will be provided to improve staff 
understanding and is expected to be completely resolved in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2015-035 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s administrative services director should ensure necessary revenue 
accruals are recorded at fiscal year-end. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially corrected.  This finding continues to be in error as 
billable funding lines were originally established without a revenue source code 
during the AKSAS/IRIS conversion.  Expenses posted to these funding lines 
and not identified when preparing the year end closing entries for CAFR.  
Partial corrective action was taken to add customer identification numbers to 
the billable funding lines, however expenses already posted in IRIS resulted in 
the expenditures not being picked up during the reimbursement output cycles. 
Continued corrective action includes setting up funding priorities with correct 
billable information and correcting already posted expenditures to bill through 
the corrected funding priorities.  Additionally, the department has developed 
accrual procedures to ensure the revenue accruals get posted correctly.  The 
department has received an ALDER report that will allow the accruals to be 
posted at the fund level.  The finding is expected to be resolved in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2015-036 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.509 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s program development director should develop and implement 
procedures to ensure accurate federal reporting. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 02-40014-14 #49 and finding 2014-032.  Please refer to the 
updated response on finding 02-40014-14 #49. 
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Finding Number:  2015-040 
Fiscal Year: 2015 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.205 
Questioned Costs:  $42,557 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s administrative services director should ensure personal service 
expenditures charged to federal programs comply with federal cost principles. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is partially resolved, pending resolution of questioned costs.  
The department has a negotiated labor rate with FHWA.  During the process 
of negotiation, any over or under collected revenues are used to determine the 
future rate. 

Finding Number:  2016-002 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure expenses and deferred outflows related to 
pensions are accurately reported in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR). 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-002.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-002. 

Finding Number:  2016-007 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure procedures are followed to accurately 
report financial activity of the Statutory Budget Reserve Fund (SBRF) and the 
Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF). 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding was partially resolved.  Procedures for treatment of lapsing and 
duplicate appropriations for governmental reserve calculations were updated 
for the FY2018 CAFR process.  Procedures were not timely revised for 
calculating the draw from the CBRF to the general fund for all components 
used in the calculation; including the procedures for the presentation of the 
repayment required by Article IX, section 17(d) of the Alaska Constitution.  
These procedure revisions will be completed for use in the FY2019 CAFR 
preparation. 

Finding Number:  2016-012 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOF’s director should implement strong system configuration management 
controls. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is unresolved.  DOF began the process to address this 
finding but needed to cease work to focus on CAFR, other year-end items, 
and the system upgrade to version 3.11.  As DOF goes through the upgrade 
process, controls and procedures will be developed and documented.  
Currently expected to begin in March 2019 and will take 18 months to 
complete. 
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Finding Number:  2016-013 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure revenues are consistently and accurately 
classified in the CAFR. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
The finding is unresolved.  While revenue procedures were written to address 
areas of difficulty, the procedures were not sufficient enough to avoid current 
year errors.  The FY2019 revenue procedures will be updated to include the 
proper treatment of the difficult areas identified in the FY2018 CAFR audit.  
The procedures will be updated and finalized by 03/31/2019. 

Finding Number:  2016-014 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should improve procedures to accurately report capital 
assets. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  For the FY2018 CAFR, DOF used the full 
functionality of the IRIS system to report capital assets, thereby eliminating 
the need for manual tracking on spreadsheets that contained formula errors.  
Each department is now responsible for entering their capital asset activity 
into IRIS-FIN.  DOF is still responsible for proper reporting of capital asset 
disclosure items.  The FY2019 capital asset procedures will be developed and 
will include the areas of difficulty identified in the FY2018 CAFR audit.  
Procedures will be completed by 03/31/2019. 

Finding Number:  2016-015 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure year-end revenue accruals reported in the 
CAFR are recorded to the correct fiscal year, are valid, and are properly 
supported. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  While the procedures for calculating 
unavailable revenue were updated in FY2018, the updates were not sufficient 
enough to avoid the errors made.  The FY2019 procedures will be 
strengthened to include the errors identified in the FY2018 CAFR by 
03/31/2019. 

Finding Number:  2016-016 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The state accountant should ensure personal service expenditures recorded in 
IRIS are reconciled to the State’s payroll system (AKPAY). 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is resolved.   
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Finding Number:  2016-017 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Division of Retirement and Benefits’ (DRB) director should ensure the 
financial audits of the retiree and health funds are performed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is not resolved.  DRB is working with DMVA to develop policies 
and procedures on proper development of census information for our actuary 
to properly prepare GASB and actuarial reports.  We anticipate this will 
resolve discrepancies in valuation development and allow for proper financial 
GASB reports.  GASB 68 and GASB 75 schedules are expected to be audited 
by 04/30/2019, which will help facilitate timely financial plan audits.  DRB is 
working with KPMG, third party administrators and our actuaries to tighten 
up the work calendar so that a complete DRAFT financial statement can be 
prepared by 10/05/2019, and that the FINAL financial statements can be 
delivered on 10/31/2019.  DRB will monitor the progress to achieve timely 
reporting. 

Finding Number:  2016-020 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOE 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  84.027, 84.173 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEED’s TLS division director should ensure LEAs are notified of federal 
suspension and debarment requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2016-024 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2014 
 
 
State Agency:  DHSS 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS’s commissioner should work with Conduent State Healthcare, LLC 
(formerly Xerox) to correct defects in the Alaska Health Enterprise (AHE) 
system. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-019.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-019. 

Finding Number:  2016-026 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.568 
Questioned Costs:  $0 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend the Finance and Management Services (FMS) Assistance 
Commissioner should ensure that proper controls over tracking of reporting 
deadlines are in place and working effectively.  Communication between the 
Division of Public Assistance (DPA) and the FMS Revenue Unit needs to be 
clear and concise to ensure proper financial data is being reported.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  Reporting procedures developed 
through coordinated efforts between FMS and DPA will be implemented and 
the LIHEAP reports brought current in FY2019.  The department anticipates 
this finding will be corrected in FY2019. 
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Finding Number:  2016-029 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.551. 10.561 
Questioned Costs:  $0 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend the Finance and Management Services (FMS) Assistant 
Commissioner and Division of Public Assistance (DPA) Director should 
continue to refine the accounting reports used to support the amounts in the 
SF-425.  In addition, the preparation and review of the SF-425 be segregated 
between the FMS Revenue Unit and DPA.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 

Finding Number:  2016-031 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.778, 93.767 
Questioned Costs:  
Indeterminate 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend that the Division of Public Assistance (DPA) should continue 
to leverage technology and update work processes to ensure timely processing 
of eligibility redeterminations.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  In addition to agency updates to 
ARIES, DPA is collaborating with the department’s information technology 
section to implement an electronic document management system to 
automate access to case documentation and improve processing timelines of 
eligibility determinations and/or redeterminations. 

Finding Number:  2016-032 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.778, 93.767 
Questioned Costs:  $0 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend that the Division of Public Assistance (DPA) provide training 
on new processes highlighting the importance of utilizing case notes to 
document income verification.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  DPA continues to provide agency 
wide training on updated work processes.  The agency has also strengthened 
its business strategies to offset or reduce the adverse impact associated with 
high annual staff turnover exceeding 30%, however, adequate time is still 
required to train the new staff.   

Finding Number:  2016-033 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.778, 93.767 
Questioned Costs:  
Indeterminate 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend that the Division of Public Assistance (DPA) provide training 
on system changes and how to create audit trails for income verification.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  DPA continues to provide agency 
wide training on updated work processes.  The agency has also strengthened 
its business strategies to offset or reduce the adverse impact associated with 
high annual staff turnover exceeding 30%, however, adequate time is still 
required to train the new staff. 
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Finding Number:  2016-034 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.551, 10.561, 93.268, 
93.568, 93.658, 93.767, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:  $0 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend the Finance and Management Services (FMS) Deputy 
Director continue to develop, test, and implement procedures that would 
allow for the accurate preparation and reconciliation of the amounts to be 
reported on the SEFA. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-023.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-023. 

Finding Number:  2016-035 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.551, 10.561, 93.268, 
93.568, 93.658, 93.767, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:  $0 

Prior Audit Finding: 
We recommend that the Department of Administration, Division of Finance 
(DOF) and the Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) work 
together to improve information system change management controls. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 

Agency Response — Department of Health and Social Services 
The Department of Administration will respond directly to this 
recommendation as DHSS has no authorization or oversight responsibilities 
with AKPAY; ALDER; or IRIS. 
 
Agency Response — Department of Administration 
This audit finding is unresolved.  DOF began the process to address this 
finding, but needed to cease work to focus on CAFR, other year-end items, 
and the system update to version 3.11.  As DOF goes through the upgrade 
process, controls and procedures will be developed and documented.  
Currently expected to begin in March 2019 and take 18 months to complete. 

Finding Number:  2016-037 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Division of Administrative Services (DAS) director should ensure 
uncollectible accounts receivable in the Unemployment Compensation fund 
(UCF) are reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-029.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-029. 

Finding Number:  2016-038 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD’s DAS director should work with the department’s finance office to 
improve accounting for UCF activity. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-030.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-030. 
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Finding Number:  2016-039 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOL 
State Agency:  DLWD 
 
CFDA:  17.225 
Questioned Costs:  $27,694 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD’s ASD director should ensure expenditures are charged to federal 
grant awards in accordance with the specified period of performance.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2016-040 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOL 
State Agency:  DLWD 
 
CFDA:  17.225 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD’s Employment and Training Services division (DET) director should 
strengthen procedures to ensure that Employment and Training 
Administration (ETA) 227 quarterly reports are accurately and fully supported 
by the accounting records. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially corrected.  DLWD revised its ETA 227 report 
procedure and implemented the change effective May 1, 2017.  DLWD is in 
the process of creating a report that will provide the necessary support for the 
ETA 227 report.  DLWD anticipates the new report will be completed by the 
Spring of 2019. 

Finding Number:  2016-042 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOL 
State Agency:  DLWD 
 
CFDA:  17.225 
Questioned Costs:  $576 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD’s DET director should ensure that policies and procedures for 
verifying eligibility are followed. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2016-043 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOI 
State Agency:  DCCED 
 
CFDA:  15.226 
Questioned Costs:  $99,864 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DCCED’s Division of Community and Regional Development (DCRA) 
director should remove eligibility requirements from state regulations that 
conflict with federal law.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is fully corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2016-053 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s Administrative Services Division (ASD) director should ensure 
financial transactions are properly coded to the correct fiscal year in the 
accounting system. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-034.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-034. 

Finding Number:  2016-054 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s ASD director should ensure necessary revenue accruals are 
correctly recorded at fiscal year-end. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-035.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2015-035. 

Finding Number:  2016-055 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s ASD director should improve internal controls to ensure 
expenditures are supported and properly recorded in the financial system. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 



III - 53 

STATE OF ALASKA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Finding Number:  2016-056 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s ASD director should improve procedures to accurately report 
capital assets. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Full implementation of prior year planned corrective actions to DOTPF’s 
capital asset reporting process was delayed due to continued staff turnover 
during the reorganization of the Finance Section.  The reorganized accounting 
staff is working as a team and has included DOA in writing draft procedures 
related to the new fixed asset process in the IRIS accounting system. 
 
DOTPF updated the fixed asset process, moving away from Excel 
spreadsheets and utilizing the functionality of IRIS.  Unfortunately, there was 
inaccurate data entered in IRIS by DOA dating back to the conversion from 
AKSAS that DOTPF had not anticipated.  
 
As well, due to continued staff turnover resulting in continued vacancies, 
DOTPF was short-staffed for several months after the anticipated date for 
being fully staffed.  As a result, the start of corrective actions was delayed.  
Due to the limited time remaining before the start of the FY2018 CAFR 
process, corrective IRIS entries were not completed.  
 
DOTPF is currently waiting for approval from the Division of Finance to 
resume data entry of fixed asset corrections in IRIS.  Once DOTPF receives 
approval from the Division of Finance to process data, corrections to 
inaccurate information in IRIS will move forward.  
 
Partial corrective actions taken include several draft IRIS transactions, which 
are currently pending approval.  Some draft transactions had to be deleted due 
to interference with the depreciation process in IRIS for the FY2018 CAFR.  
Source documentation for deleted and future IRIS corrections has been 
compiled and saved in one central location to help expedite the data entry 
process.  
 
Corrective actions to DOTPF’s capital asset process will resume once 
approval is received from the Division of Finance to move forward with IRIS 
entries.  These will be ongoing until 08/31/2019. 
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Finding Number:  2016-057 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Alaska International Airport System (AIAS) controller should ensure 
AIAS’ financial statement audit is performed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected.  AIAS worked with the Division of 
Finance to build better ALDER reports to assist in more timely audits and 
with DOTPF Administrative Services regarding project accounting processes 
performed by Administrative Services on behalf of AIAS to help ensure 
meeting future financial closing deadlines. 

AIAS has also investigated developing a memorandum of understanding 
(MOU) specifying and documenting certain budget and accounting processes 
related to AIAS capital project grant accounting, however this effort has been 
abated in order to evaluate the effectiveness of other changes in project 
accounting which appear to have improved timeliness and may obviate the 
need for the specific memorandum initially considered. 

We believe this additional action, along with continuation of the efforts 
undertaken to address initial finding will help ensure more timely issuance of 
FY2018 and subsequent financial statements. 

Finding Number:  2016-060 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.205 
Questioned Costs:  $1,219 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s ASD director should ensure personal service expenditures charged 
to federal programs comply with federal cost principles. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2016-061 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.205 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s Statewide Design and Engineering chief should strengthen 
procedures to ensure the annual Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
value engineering (VE) report accurately represents the VE studies performed.  
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  The department has updated the 
P&P and is currently going through internal review and approval process.  The 
anticipated completion date for the listed corrective action is December 2018. 

Finding Number:  2016-062 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.205 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s chief contracts officer should improve procedures to verify all 
subcontractors meet suspension and debarment requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2016-063 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  AMHTA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
AMHTA’s chief financial officer (CFO) should ensure AMHTA’s financial 
statement audit is performed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-001 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The State’s proportionate share of pension expense totaling $379.6 million 
was not accurately classified by function in the draft government-wide 
Statement of Activities. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-002 and finding 2016-002.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-002. 

Finding Number:  2017-002 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Procedures were inadequate to ensure Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund 
financial activity was accurately reported in the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR). 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-007.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-007. 

Finding Number:  2017-003 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Administration has not implemented a comprehensive 
policy for configuration management. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-012.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-012. 

Finding Number:  2017-004 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Government-wide governmental activities revenue in the draft Statement of 
Activities contained numerous classification errors totaling $230.1 million. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-013.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-013. 

Finding Number:  2017-005 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Multiple government-wide governmental activities capital asset errors were 
identified in the draft CAFR financial statements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-014.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-014. 
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Finding Number:  2017-006 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Multiple errors were identified related to the accrual of revenue and the 
calculation of deferred inflows of resources. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-015.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-015. 

Finding Number:  2017-007 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Personal services expenditures generated from the State’s payroll systems were 
not reconciled to the State’s accounting system, IRIS. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-016.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-016. 

Finding Number:  2017-008 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Government-wide governmental activities net position related to long-term 
debt in the amount of $67.3 million was not properly classified in the FY2017 
draft CAFR. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is unresolved.  During FY2018, the workbook used for debt 
reporting was updated with instructions to address the type of errors that 
occurred during FY2017.  The errors that occurred in FY2018 were a result of 
staff turnover and the lack of sufficient procedures for that type of activity.  
DOF has hired a new debt accountant and is in the process of revising the 
FY2019 debt procedures to include the areas identified during the FY2018 
CAFR audit.  The procedures will be completed by 03/31/2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-009 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Material internal control weaknesses exist with the State’s new payroll system, 
IRIS-Human Resources Management module. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  Control and monitoring reports had been 
created but were not implemented until August 2018.  The remaining item will 
be resolved with the IRIS-HMR upgrade to version 3.11 scheduled to start in 
March 2019 and set to go live in 2020. 

Finding Number:  2017-010 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Thirteen outside audits were received after the draft CAFR was complete. 
 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding has been resolved for the items that are in the control of DOF. 
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Finding Number:  2017-011 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The financial audits of the pension and health funds were not completed 
timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-017.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-017. 

Finding Number:  2017-012 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DOA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Several departments inaccurately reported federal awards expended on the 
FY2017 schedule of expenditures of federal awards; inaccurately reported 
pass-through expenditures; and subrecipient amounts were not supported by 
the accounting records. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  The instructions for the federal schedule 
have been revised.  The planned video training had to be delayed due to 
ALDER documentation for training taking priority. 

Finding Number:  2017-013 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA, 
USDOT, USDOE, USDHHS 
State Agency:  DOA 
 
CFDA:  10.557, 10.558, 10.U08 
10.U09, 20.106, 84.010, 93.563 
93.659, 93.667, 93.767, 93.775, 
93.777, 93.778, 93.959 
Questioned Costs:  
Indeterminate 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The FY2017 annual statewide cost allocation plan (SWCAP) has not been 
federally approved. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  While the FY2017 SWCAP has been 
approved, the FY2018 SWCAP is currently with the federal cost center 
approver for review and acceptance.  The FY2019 SWCAP is ready to be 
submitted once the FY2018 has been approved.  The cost center approver will 
not accept the FY2019 SWCAP for review until the FY2018 has been fully 
reviewed and approved.  Until the federal cost center approver can catch up 
with the plan already submitted and the plan ready to be submitted, the State 
will continue to be behind in obtaining current SWCAP approvals.  

Finding Number:  2017-019 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  Law 
 
CFDA:  93.775, 93.777, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Law did not have adequate documentation in its case 
tracking system to support the disposition of cases reviewed.  Additionally, it 
also did not have standard operating procedures that included timeframes for 
conducting investigations, documenting case notes and documenting the case 
conclusion. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  As noted in the earlier response to 
the audit, documentation is occurring within the case management system 
from inception to disposition.  The remaining planned corrective action is a 
full revision of the Unit’s Policies and Procedures Manual and staff training on 
implementation.  A draft revision of the Policies and Procedures has been 
developed and is being reviewed. 
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Finding Number:  2017-020 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
State Agency:  DOR 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Revenue inaccurately reported federal awards expended 
on the department’s FY2017 schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  DOR staff developed written procedures for 
preparing the SEFA.  The written procedures will be updated to include 
corrected reporting parameters and a process for documenting review of the 
SEFA in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-021 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DOR 
 
CFDA:  93.563 
Questioned Costs:  $70,270 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Child Support Services Division claimed federal reimbursement for rent 
expenditures twice. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-022 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DOR 
 
CFDA:  93.563 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Child Support Enforcement program’s quarterly financial report for 
September 30, 2017 contained errors. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding was partially corrected.  Child Support Services Division (CSSD) 
has started to develop written instructions for gathering quarterly reporting 
numbers, however they are about 60% completed.  CSSD plans to complete 
instructions with the quarter ending 12/31/2018.  The instructions will be 
provided by 01/31/2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-024 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DEED 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Education and Early Development (DEED) inaccurately 
reported some federal awards expended on the department’s FY2017 schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards.  Additionally, the department’s accounting 
records did not support some pass-through and subrecipient expenditures. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-025 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  10.558 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEED did not issue the required annual media release in FY2017 for the 
Child and Adult Care Food Program. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2017-026 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
Federal Agency: USDOE 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  84.010 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEED did not fully comply with the Uniform Guidance subrecipient 
monitoring requirements for conducting annual risk assessments and 
monitoring for compliance. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  The risk assessment tool has been 
updated to include risk assessments for all Local Education Agencies (LEAs) 
and what action is required based on the level of risk. 
 
Monitoring procedures may be further modified to address any feedback 
received from the United States Department of Education.  The department 
expects this finding to be fully corrected in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-027 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
Federal Agency: USDOE 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  84.010 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEED did not notify numerous Local Education Agencies (LEAs) receiving 
Title IA funds that they must comply with all federal suspension and 
debarment requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  DEED will add additional language 
to grant assurances to include the requirement that subrecipients inform next 
tier subawards of suspension and debarment requirements.  The correction 
will be fully implemented in grant awards issued for FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-028 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDOE 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  84.010 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Some LEAs required to provide program comparability reports to DEED in 
FY2017 did not submit the reports. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-029 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDOE 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  84.010 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEED lacked procedures ensuring LEAs retain federally required 
documentation supporting removal of students from the regulatory cohort. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2017-030 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
 
Federal Agency: USDOE 
State Agency:  DEED 
 
CFDA:  84.010 
Questioned Costs:  $63,259 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DEED did not maintain evidence that staff reviewed the amount of 
unexpended FY2016 Title IA federal funding, to ensure no more than 15% of 
each LEA’s award was carried over into FY2017.  Additionally, DEED did 
not maintain required copies or other evidence to demonstrate waivers were 
issued for some LEAs that had carryover funds exceeding the 15% limit. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  The department is continuing to 
assess carryover procedures to determine the most appropriate timing and 
methods of communication with districts regarding carryover funds exceeding 
the 15% limit. 
 
The department has also contacted affected districts to issue waivers or reduce 
carryover for identified questioned costs.  The department expects this finding 
to be fully corrected in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-032 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2014 
 
 
State Agency:  DHSS 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) did not fully address 
Alaska Health Enterprise (AHE) system deficiencies.  Additionally, the AHE 
system was not federally certified. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-019 and 2016-024.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-019. 

Finding Number:  2017-033 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
State Agency:  DHSS 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS misstated FY2017 expenditures, assets and liabilities by incorrectly 
reclassifying unauthorized federal expenditures as prepaid assets and recording 
expenditures to the incorrect fiscal year 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-034 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DHSS 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS inaccurately reported federal awards expended on its FY2017 schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA), which resulted in over-reporting 
federal awards by approximately $48 million.  Additionally, pass-through 
amounts to other state agencies were erroneously omitted from the SEFA, and 
subrecipient totals for some programs were not supported by the accounting 
records. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  Written procedures over the 
preparation and review of the SEFA specific to the department has not been 
implemented.  FMS will design and implement written procedures in FY2019.  
The procedures will also include information on verifying completeness of the 
SEFA. 
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Finding Number:  2017-035 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
Federal Agencies: USDA and 
USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.557, 93.659, 93.667, 
93.775, 93.767, 93.777, 93.778, 
93.959 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Procedures developed and implemented by DHSS were not adequate to 
enable an accurate reconciliation of program expenditure details to total 
expenditures presented on the SEFA. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-023 and finding 2016-034.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-023. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-036 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.557 
Questioned Costs:  Below 
reporting threshold 

Prior Audit Finding: 
A few transactions were erroneously charged to the Special Supplemental 
Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-037 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.557 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS was not in compliance with the CMIA agreement for a portion of one 
transaction. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  DHSS Division of Public 
Assistance (DPA) and Finance and Management Services (FMS) continue to 
collaborate by improving communication to strengthen compliance with 
CMIA requirements.  Additionally, FMS Finance Officer continues to provide 
training and instruction for both revenue and division staff.  The department 
is finalizing policy and procedure for implementation during FY2019.  

Finding Number:  2017-038 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  10.557 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS’s sub-award template subrecipient terms, conditions and assurances did 
not reference the Uniform Guidance requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 
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Finding Number:  2017-039 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.667 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS’s sub-award template subrecipient terms, conditions and assurances did 
not reference the Uniform Guidance requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-040 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.775, 93.777, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:  $164,726 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Numerous individual claims contained lines without eligibility subtypes. 
 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  Following the action associated 
with fixing the system defects taken by the Division of Health Care Services 
(HCS) early in FY2018, the division completed its review of impacted claims 
and determined fewer claims were missing associated eligibility than previously 
reported resulting in total questioned costs of $27,802 (total federal and state).  
The original amount reported as questioned costs included claims impacted by 
the backlog of Medicaid applications and have since been adjusted 
retroactively.  The audit finding will be resolved in FY2019 following the 
resolution of the outstanding questioned costs.   

Finding Number:  2017-041 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.775, 93.777, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:  Below 
reporting threshold 

Prior Audit Finding: 
A few transactions were erroneously charged to the Medicaid Cluster program. 
 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-042 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.775, 93.777, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
One transaction was paid at a rate which differed from what was required in 
the supporting schedules and regulations. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was partially corrected.  The Division of Health Care 
Services continues to monitor the corrective action plan (CAP) for its fiscal 
agent, Conduent.  The division has increased the frequency of its meetings on 
the CAP from monthly to weekly and is re-evaluating the fiscal agent’s 
processes.  The department anticipates this finding will be corrected in 
FY2019. 
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Finding Number:  2017-043 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.775, 93.777, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS does not have consistent monitoring processes in place to review the 
eligibility determinations. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of findings 2016-031, 2016-032 and 2016-033.  Please refer to the 
updated response on findings 2016-031, 2016-032 and 2016-033. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-044 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.775, 93.777, 93.778 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS did not properly execute its sampling plan for conducting Surveillance 
and Utilization reviews. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-045 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDHHS 
State Agency:  DHSS 
 
CFDA:  93.959 
Questioned Costs:   
Not determinable 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DHSS’s sub-award template subrecipient terms, conditions and assurances did 
not reference the Uniform Guidance requirements. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-047 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2013 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
An allowance for uncollectible accounts was not established during FY2017 
and DLWD wrote off accounts determined uncollectible during the year 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-029 and finding 2016-037.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-029. 
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Finding Number:  2017-048 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD’s assessed fraud penalties were recorded as reductions to expenses 
rather than revenues to the fund.  The fraud penalties receivable account had a 
negative balance and year-end transactions to clear the Unemployment 
Compensation Fund suspense receipts liability account were not processed. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-030 and finding 2016-038.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-030. 

Finding Number:  2017-049 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
State Agency:  DLWD 
Financial statement finding 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DLWD inaccurately reported federal awards expended on the department’s 
FY2017 schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-051 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DCCED 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
inaccurately reported federal awards expended on the department’s FY2017 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards.  Additionally, for a couple of 
programs, the department’s accounting records did not support the 
subrecipient totals, and the pass-through expenditures to other state agencies. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-052 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
State Agency:  DMVA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Military and Veterans Affairs inaccurately reported pass-
through expenditures for a few programs on the department’s FY2017 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is not corrected.  Due to the changes in the revised SEFA 
format, DMVA staff did not develop written procedures to address the 
changes and instead used Division of Finance instructions as guidance. 
DMVA Finance Officer will develop written procedures over the preparation 
and review of the FY2019 SEFA to ensure it is accurate and complete. 
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Finding Number:  2017-054 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DNR 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) inaccurately reported federal 
awards expended on the department’s FY2017 schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards. Additionally, the department’s accounting records did not 
support the subrecipient expenditures for some programs. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was not corrected.  Due to inconsistencies in how activity 
of our federal awards has been recorded in our accounting information system 
(IRIS), the corrective action was to change how federal grants are structured in 
IRIS with a focus on consistency and simplicity, and development of internal 
control monitoring reports specific to federal awards.  DNR’s management is 
working on developing and implementing new written procedures for the 
preparation and review of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards by 
May 15, 2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-055 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DNR 
 
CFDA:  10.U08 
Questioned Costs:  $484,065 

CFDA:  10.U09 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Multiple DNR timesheets were not supported by the federally required OF-
288 form; lacked the required written justification for hours worked in excess 
of 16 hours or 2:1 work-rest ratio; did not match the OF-288 timesheets; were 
not signed by an employee; and/or recorded additional compensation during 
travel status without adequate support. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is partially corrected.  A policy letter was issued in April 
2018 and a checklist was developed to address missing OF-288 timesheets and 
timesheet signatures.  The department is currently evaluating and working on 
addressing the remaining noncompliance deficiencies by June 30, 2019.  The 
department anticipates that questioned costs will be resolved during FY2020, 
by November 2019. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-056 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DNR 
 
CFDA:  10.U08 
Questioned Costs:  $67,936 

CFDA:  10.U09 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DNR billed unallowable aviation offset indirect costs to the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture, USFS fire suppression program. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is partially corrected.  No aviation offset expenditures were 
charged to the program in FY2018.  The department is currently evaluating 
the process.  The department anticipates that questioned costs will be resolved 
in July 2019. 
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Finding Number:  2017-057 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DNR 
 
CFDA:  10.U08 
Questioned Costs:  $2,244 

CFDA:  10.U09 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Some DNR timesheets for the U.S. Forest Service Fire Suppression program 
were inaccurately calculated. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 

Agency Response – Department of Natural Resources:  This audit finding 
is not corrected.  DNR’s management is continuing to work with DOA’s 
Division of Personnel (DOP) and Labor Relations framing written policies to 
improve timesheet processing procedures.  Questioned costs will be resolved 
by June 30, 2019. 
 
Agency Response – Department of Administration (DOA):  This audit 
finding is not corrected for FY2018.  Due to a lack of an automated data entry 
and calculation function for the time system, there will always be manual 
calculation errors; however, on an ongoing basis, DOP management will 
continue to provide regular trainings.  In April 2018, DOP management 
implemented certification procedures to help minimize timesheet errors. 

Finding Number:  2017-058 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DNR 
 
CFDA:  10.U08, 10.U09 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
System control deficiencies were identified during the review of DNR’s 
emergency firefighter time system. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 

Agency Response – Department of Natural Resources:  This audit finding 
is partially corrected.  DNR reviewed and deleted invalid user accounts.  
DNR’s management is continuing to assist with DOA’s Division of Personnel 
in strengthening procedures. 
 
Agency Response – Department of Administration:  This audit finding is 
partially corrected.  The Division of Personnel and Labor Relations’ staff 
revised its outdated reconciliation and certification procedures in April 2018.  
Formal written procedures for requesting user access will be finalized in 
FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-059 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DNR 
 
CFDA:  10.U08 
Questioned Costs:  $186,556 

CFDA:  10.U09 
Questioned Costs:  None  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DNR billed administrative overhead costs that were not identified as program 
expenditures in the State’s accounting system. Additionally, some direct 
expenditures included in DNR’s FY2017 bill-for-collection were not 
supported by the State’s accounting records. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is partially corrected.  The department anticipates that 
questioned costs will be resolved before the end of FY2019. 
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Finding Number:  2017-060 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDA 
State Agency:  DNR 
 
CFDA:  10.U08, 10.U09 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DNR’s procurement of aircraft rentals did not comply with State procurement 
laws. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding is not corrected.  Due to the timing of fire season, the 
department has not had the time to implement the corrective action plan.  The 
department is working on standard operating procedures to be in complaint 
with State procurement laws that will be implemented for any new 
procurements of aircraft rentals starting the summer of 2019.  Currently, an 
Invitation to Bid (ITB) with strict evaluation criteria, for emergency aircraft 
services to Wildland Fire Support has been issued and will close on February 
20, 2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-062 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
State Agency:  DFG 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Fish and Game inaccurately reported some federal awards 
expenditures and pass-through information on the department’s FY2017 
SEFA. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding has been fully resolved. 

Finding Number:  2017-064 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
State Agency:  DEC 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Department of Environmental Conservation lacked effective controls to 
ensure the FY2017 schedule of expenditures of federal awards was accurate, 
complete, and supported by the accounting records. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-065 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) FY2017 
expenditures recorded during the reappropriation period were not consistently 
recorded to the correct fiscal year. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-034 and finding 2016-053.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-034. 

Finding Number:  2017-066 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2015 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Certain FY2017 fiscal year-end revenue accruals made by DOTPF were 
inaccurate or missing. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2015-035 and finding 2016-054.  Please refer to the updated 
response on finding 2015-035. 
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Finding Number:  2017-067 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
Temporarily coded expenditure transactions made by DOTPF were not 
moved to the correct appropriation by the end of FY2017. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-055.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-055. 

Finding Number:  2017-068 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s FY2017 capital assets reported to the Division of Finance 
contained significant errors. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-056.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-056. 

Finding Number:  2017-069 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s significant deficiencies in financial accounting and reporting, when 
considered together, represent a material weakness. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially corrected.  The department implemented corrective 
action immediately.  This finding will be fully corrected in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-070 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Alaska International Airport System’s FY2017 financial statement audit 
was not completed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-057.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-057. 

Finding Number:  2017-071 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF inaccurately reported federal expenditures for a program  on the 
department’s FY2017 schedule of expenditures and federal awards, and their  
accounting records did not support the subrecipient amounts for several other 
programs. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially corrected.  DOTPF developed written procedures 
over the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) and accurately 
reported SEFA data in FY2018.  DOTPF will add written procedures for 
documenting the review of the SEFA for FY2019. 
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Finding Number:  2017-072 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.106 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
DOTPF’s record of Airport Improvement Program (AIP) funded equipment 
was incomplete and inaccurate. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 
 

Finding Number:  2017-073 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
Federal Agency: USDOT 
State Agency:  DOTPF 
 
CFDA:  20.106 
Questioned Costs:  None 

Prior Audit Finding: 
Multiple AIP financial reports prepared by DOTPF contained significant 
reporting errors. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This finding is partially resolved.  The SF-425 reports correctly included all 
necessary grants for reporting and included documented review.  The 5100-
126 and 5100-127 did not have procedures for documenting review prior to 
the submission of the reports during FY2018.  Procedures for the 
documenting of the review were created in spring 2018.  For the 5100-126 
reports, no prior year reports were included in the current year.  For the 5100-
126 and 5100-127, DOTPF will update the ALDER parameters for FFY2018 
reports and maintain the reports as support.  This finding will be fully 
corrected in FY2019. 

Finding Number:  2017-076 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2016 
 
State Agency:  AMHTA 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority’s FY2017 financial statement audit 
was not completed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
Repeat of finding 2016-063.  Please refer to the updated response on finding 
2016-063. 

Finding Number:  2017-077 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
 
State Agency:  AHFC 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Alaska Housing Finance Corporation’s FY2017 financial statement audits 
for the Northern Tobacco Securitization Corporation and the Alaska Housing 
Capital Corporation were not completed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected. 

Finding Number:  2017-078 
Fiscal Year: 2017 
Initial Finding Year: 2017 
 
State Agency:  AAC 
Financial statement finding  

Prior Audit Finding: 
The Alaska Aerospace Corporation’s FY2017 financial statement audit was 
not completed timely. 
 
Status/corrective action planned/reasons for no further action: 
This audit finding was fully corrected.  As of September 7, 2018, the FY2018 
financial statement audit is on track to be completed by the deadline of 
October 1, 2018. 
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THE STATE 

of ALASKA 
Department of Administration 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 

GOVERNOR MICHAEL J DUNLE..-\VY 

May 6, 2019 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 
Legislative Budget and Audit Committee 
Division of Legislative Audit 
PO Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis: 

RECEIVED 

MAY 0 6 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

I U'" Fl ~tate Ollicc Buildmg 
PO 13o'\ II 0200 

.lun~au. Alas(.. a 99811 
Mmn: 907 465 2200 

ra\. 907.465.2135 
"" \\ .doa alaska gm 

RE: FY 2018 Confidential Preliminary Audit, Department of Administration (DOA) 

This is in response to Recommendations in the FY 2018 State of Alaska Single Audit. 

Recommendation No. 1 

DOA's state accountant ensure procedures are updated timely to accurately report CBRF 
and SBRF financial activity including the presentation of the repayment required by 
Article IX, Section 17(d) of the Alaska Constitution. The revised procedures for the 
calculation of the draw from the CBRF to the general fund should provide detail on the 
specific components of the calculation and an annual evaluation of the methodology for 
changes. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

The procedures for the CBRF sweep are being reviewed and will be updated to include the 
specific components used in the calculation of the draw and to include instructions for analysis 
of the methodology for any needed changes. 

It is anticipated the completion date is August 31, 2019. 

Agency Contact: Katina Holmberg 

Recommendation No. 2 

DOF's director should implement strong svstem configuration management controls over 
the accounting and reporting systems. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 
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As DOF goes through the upgrade to the accounting system, procedures will be developed for 
configuration management, ensuring configuration changes are documented as being tested, 
approved, and placed into production. 

It is anticipated the completion will be the last quarter of FY2020 when the accounting system 
goes live. 

Agency Contact:  Dan DeBartolo 

Recommendation No. 3 

DOF's director should improve the State’s payroll system controls. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

This finding addressed three different issues. Two of the issues have been resolved with database 
reports being distributed to the departments and with a data fix. The remaining item will be fully 
resolved with the upgrade to the accounting system. 

It is anticipated the completion will be the last quarter of FY2020 when the accounting system 
goes live. 

Agency Contact: Dan DeBartolo 

Recommendation No. 4 

DOF's director should strengthen logical access controls over logical access to the 
accounting system. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

Monitoring and backup procedures have been finalized and have been implemented. 

Corrective action was completed July 2018. 

Agency Contact: Dan DeBartolo 

Recommendation No. 5 

DOA's DOF director should amend DOF's agreement with the IRIS contractor to require 
the contractor provide an annual independent report on internal controls consistent with 
best practices and the State's RFP directives. Additionally, the director should develop 
internal control procedures to evaluate the results of those examinations. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

DOF will work with OIT to ensure all necessary security policy elements are included as well as 
a provision for an annual Statement of Attestation Engagement Report from the vendor. We plan 
to reopen contract discussions with the vendor to ensure future IRIS upgrade and support roles 
are clear and we intend to include stronger language in the contract that requires documentation 
on internal control. 
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Contracts are expected to be completed by August 2019. 
 
Agency Contact: Dan DeBartolo 

Recommendation No. 6 

DOA's state accountant should review and improve procedures to ensure revenues are 
consistently and accurately classified. Additionally, supporting documentation of revenue 
classifications should be maintained. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

Accounting Services will update procedures to include all areas of difficulty found during the 
FY18 CAFR audit. Staff permitting, the same accountant will perform these functions for the 
FY19 CAFR while walking through the procedures to ensure they are adequate. If it is not 
possible for the same staff to perform the duties the Accounting Services supervisor will assist in 
the performance and review of the procedures. 

Procedures are expected to be updated by August 31, 2019. 

Agency Contact:  Katina Holmberg 

Recommendation No. 7 

DOA's state accountant should improve procedures to ensure accurate reporting of capital 
assets in the annual CAFR. Procedures should include monitoring of agency capital assets 
during CAFR preparation so questionable items can be timely followed up with agencies 
and corrected. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

Capital asset procedures are being developed to address the new process of reporting capital 
assets in IRIS-FIN. Various analytical reviews will be included in the procedures to help mitigate 
the errors that occurred during FY18.  
 
Procedures are expected to be completed by August 31, 2019. 

Agency Contact:  Katina Holmberg 

Recommendation No. 8 

DOA's state accountant should improve procedures ensure that the calculation of deferred 
in flows of resources is accurately reported and properly supported. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

Accounting Services will update procedures to include all areas of difficulty found during the 
FY18 CAFR audit. Staff permitting, the same accountant will perform these functions for the 
FY19 CAFR while walking through the procedures to ensure they are adequate. If it is not 
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possible for the same staff to perform the duties the Accounting Services supervisor will assist in 
the performance and review of the procedures. 

Procedures are expected to be updated by August 31, 2019. 

Agency Contact:  Katina Holmberg 

Recommendation No. 9 

DOA's state accountant should improve procedures to ensure governmental activities net 
position related to long-term debt is accurately reported in the CAFR's government-wide 
Statement of Net Position. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

Accounting Services will update procedures to include all areas of difficulty found during the 
FY18 CAFR audit. The Accounting Services supervisor will assist the staff performing these 
duties for the FY 19 CAFR. 

Procedures are expected to be completed by August 31, 2019. 

Agency Contact:  Katina Holmberg 

Recommendation No. 10 

DRB’s CFO should improve procedures to ensure financial statement audits of the penson 
and health funds are performed timely. 

Agency Response: DOA/DRB Agrees with this finding 

The Division is working with the Department of Military and Veterans’ Affairs (DMVA) to 
determine the best source of census information, and how best to obtain those in a timely manner 
for the external audit.  Additionally, the information provided is used to prepare the bi-annual 
actuarial valuation reports and is needed to prepare GASB 67 / 68 reports for the audited 
financial statements and the State’s CAFR.  The Division will continue to work with DMVA to 
provide accurate and timely data to the necessary parties. 
 
In anticipation of meeting the required modified deadline from the Division of Finance (DOF) of 
October 15, 2019, DRB has made modifications to our audit schedule for fiscal year 2019 
audited reports for all plans. The Division will have meetings with the external auditors to make 
certain deadlines are met, progress on audits is moving as scheduled, and final reports are issued 
per DOF’s deadlines. 

The modified audit schedule is already been completed.  Additionally, the Division has issued a 
Request for Proposal for external audit work and have included the modified deadline of October 
15 for final reports. 

Agency Contact:  Kevin Worley 
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Recommendation No. 11 

DRB’s CFO should ensure the audited schedules of employer and non-employer OPEB 
allocations for PERS and TRS are provided timely to participating employers. 

Agency Response: DOA/DRB Agrees with this finding 

In anticipation of meeting reporting deadlines for users of these schedules, DRB has made 
modifications to our audit schedule for fiscal year 2019. The Division will have meetings with 
the external auditors to make certain deadlines are met, progress on audits is moving as 
scheduled, and final reports are issued per DOF’s deadlines. 

The modified audit schedule has already been developed.  Additionally, the Division has issued a 
Request for Proposal for external audit work and have included the deadline of December 31 for 
final audited schedules. 

Agency Contact:  Kevin Worley 

Recommendation No. 12 

DOA’s OIT chief information officer should allocate staff resources to properly account for 
capital assets owned by the ISF. 

Agency Response: DOA/OIT Agrees with this finding 

OIT is currently working on the reconciliation of assets between IRIS and FASGOV. OIT has 
prepared a 10-year reconciliation worksheet between CAFR and our internal asset inventory 
listing. We are verifying assets in FY18 to help support a reconciling entry in IRIS. OIT is 
dedicating additional staff and time into Anchorage inventory and control process through this 
fiscal year close. OIT will enter/remove the assets in FASGOV once identified and complete the 
correct transaction in IRIS to reduce the asset value. 
 
OIT expects to complete this by October of 2019. 

Agency Contact: Blessy Roberts 

Recommendation No. 13 

DOF's director should develop and implement ALDER 2.0 training classes and a 
comprehensive reference manual to ensure State agencies' fiscal personnel using ALDER 
2.0 are properly trained. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOF Agrees with this finding 

One of the priorities of the incumbent in the newly created training position is developing 
ALDER training class, videos, and instructions.  Training materials for the ALDER 100 and 101 
courses have been developed and posted to the DOF website. 
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Videos to accompany the ALDER 100 and 101 videos are anticipated to be completed by May 
2019. Training classes and instructions for report developers is expected to begin July 2019.  

Agency Contact: Katina Holmberg 

Recommendation No. 14 

SOA’s OIT chief information officer should work with DOR’s director , with oversight 
over the referenced system, to strengthen internal controls. 

Agency Response: DOA/OIT Agrees with this finding 

Corrective actions have been taken to address the security weaknesses identified.  

OIT expects to complete this by May 2019.   

Agency Contact: Russell Kunibe 

Recommendation No. 58 

DOA's DOP director and DNR's Division of Forestry deputy director should work together 
to improve timesheet processing procedures for the USFS Fire Suppression Program. 

Agency Response: DOA/DOP Agrees with this finding 

DNR has implemented documenting time on their timesheets in accordance with the Collective 
Bargaining unit agreements.  With clearly documented time on timesheets, it will assist in the 
manual calculation processes, which in turn assists with the certification process.  DOA-DOPLR 
will also implement additional timesheet processing and certification training specific to DNR-
Forestry for the upcoming fire season. 

This was completed April 30, 2019 

Agency Contacts: Rachel Atkinson – Human Resource Consultant V (DOA-DOPLR) 
Joel Del Rosario – Administrative Operations Manager I (DNR) 

Sincerely, 

Kelly Tshibaka 
Commissioner of Administration 
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Til E STATE Department of Revenue 

of ALASKA OH·ICJ.: Ul Til E (01\l~ llSS IONLR 

GOVERNOR MICHAEL J, DUNUi..·\VY 

April 22,2019 

Alaska State Legislature 
Legislative Budget and Audit Committee 
Division of Legislative Audit 
P.O. Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811 

Dear Division of Legislative Audit: 

RECEIVED 

I MAY 0 6 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

PO Box I I 0400 
Juneau, Alaska 99811-0400 

Main. 907 465.2300 
Fox: 907.465.2389 

We are submitting this letter in response to your letter on April 12, 2019 describing the four 
FY18 audit findings for the Department of Revenue. 

Our responses are submitted below on the required template provided by your office. Thank you 
for your consideration. 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-015: Revenues eligible for transfer to the Constitutional Budgetary Reserve Fund 
(CBRF) were not transferred during FY 18 and revenues that should have remained in the CBRF 
were moved to the general fund. 

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding): 
Disagrees - The department continues to rely on the legal analysis 
conducted by the Attomey General 's office in 2018 which concluded 
that payments related to the FERC settlements were not to be transferred 
to the CBRF. 

Corrective Action (coiTective action planned): 
N/A 

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
I N/A 
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Response to Legislative Audit 
April22, 2019 

Page 2 of3 

Finding 2018-016: DOR's FY 18 year-end adjusting entry to properly report interest and penalties 
remitted with taxes was not calculated correctly. 

eement (state whether 
ees 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The Tax Division realizes that we did not have the proper controls in 
place to accurately complete this year-end adjustments after losing key 
personnel. Although we now have personnel in place that can do this 
work, we will be prepared in case we are faced with this situation again. 
The corrective action includes writing detailed procedures for both the 
Accountant who should do this entry and the Supervisor who reviews the 
work. These procedures will be completed and tested by multiple 
individuals by June 30, 2019. 

letion Date (list antici letion date): 
June 30, 2019 

Colleen Glover, Tax Division Director 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-017: There was no evidence that supervisory review of DOR's Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) was performed prior to submission. In addition, DOR's 
instructions for SEF A preparation included report filters that were not accurate for financial 
reporting. 

eement (state whether 
ees 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The Finance Office will revise the instructions to include the correct 
repmi parameters for fiscal year and budget fiscal year. A checklist will 
be added to the instructions to ensure supervisory review. 

letion Date (list antici 
Instructions were u 

Brad Ewin , Administrative Services Director 
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Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Response to Legislative Audit 
April 22, 2019 

Page 3 of3 

Finding 2018-018: A DOR information technology system has internal control weaknesses. 

ency Agreement (state whether 
Agrees 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The task associated with this internal control weakness has been 
reassigned. 

Colleen Glover, Tax Division Director 

~ 
Bruce Tan~~ 
Commissioner 
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THE STATE 

01ALASKA 
GO'-'"ERNOR MICH.-i.EL T. DUNLEAii-Y 

Apri122,2019 

Kris Curtis, Legislative Auditor 
Division of Legislative Audit 
P.O. Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811 -3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis: 

Department of Education & 
Early Development 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSION ER 

RECEIVED 

APR 2 3 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

801 West Tenth Street, Suite 200 
P.O. Box 110500 

Juneau, Alaska 99811-0500 
Main: 907.465.2800 

TTY /TDD: 907.465.2815 
Fox: 907.465.4156 

The Department of Education & Early Development (DEED) appreciates the opportunity to 
respond to the audit recommendations in the confidential preliminary audit report of the State of 
Alaska, Statewide Single Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018. 

Enclosed are the corrective action plan forms for each of the three findings addressed in the 
preliminary report. 

The department appreciates these being brought to our attention and we welcome the opportunity 
to correct them and ensure compliance. 

Commissioner 

Enclosure 



 a 
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TllE STA'l E 

~~LASKA 
GClVERN< JR fvHl H.-U!L l Dl.'Nl L-\\T 

May 09,2019 

Ms. Kris Curtis, CPA, ClSA 
Legislative Auditor 
Division of Legislative Audit 
P.O. Box 113300 
Jtmeau, AK 99811-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis, 

RECEIVED 

MAY 0 9 2019 

LEGISLATIVE.AUDIT 

Department of 
Health and Social Services 

UHI( I· OF 1111- ( U\I \1 1~~10N I R 

Anchorage 
3o01 C Stree-1. 'Uile "0<. 

AI 11010ge, AICJSI;cJ 9"503-5923 
M'lin 90/ 2o9 .7800 

Fox: 907.269.0060 

Juneau 
P 0 Box I 1 060 I 

350 Main (!reel Surfe 4U4 

Juneau A lost· a 9Y~ 11-0601 
Mo;rl. 907.4!.5.3830 

Fw(' 907 46S.306fl 

RE: Confidential Preliminary Audit Report, State of Alaska, Single Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2018. 

The Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) appreciates the opportunity to review and evaluate the 
audit report with the associated recommendations as shared in your confidential audit report. Below are the 
department· s responses for each of the recommendations. 

Finding 2018-022: There was no evidence that supervisory review of the Department of Health and Social 
Services' CDHSS) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEF A) was performed prior to submission to the 
Deprutment of Administration. In addition. there was no evidence the federal expenditure data reported in the 
SEF A was verified for completeness. 

Agency Agreement state whether 
DHSS concurs with the findin . 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DHSS concurs with the fmding. The FMS Finance Officer is developing customized written 
procedures to supplement the ones provided by the Division of Finance and that document the 
steps employed in the preparation of the DHSS SEFA. The procedures include steps to 
strengthen the transparency of the review and data verification processes completed prior to 
submitting the report. The department anticipates this findjng will be resolved in SFY 2019. 

Com letion Date (list antici 
SFY 2019 

Sar1a P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 
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Ms. Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
May 09, 2019 
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Finding 2018-023: Review of FY 18 personal service expenditures identified multiple instances of 
noncompliance. The audit tested one judgmentally selected timesheet and 80 randomly selected timesheets. Two 
of 20 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (T ANF) timesheets and five of 34 Child Care and Development 
Fund (CCDF) timesheets directly charging costs to federal programs lacked adequate supporting docwnentation, 
including two that did not fully comply with DI-ISS' federally approved Public Assistance Cost Allocation Plan 
(P ACAP). In addition, two of 27 timesheets allocating costs to multiple federal programs did not fully comply 
with the PACAP. 

Questioned Costs: 
CFDA 93.575: $93,087 
CFDA 93.558: $150,073 
CFDA 93.778: $12,462 
CFDA 93.767: $3,633 

CFDA Numbers: 93.558 and 93 .575, 93.596 and 93.775, 93.777, 93.778, and 93.767 

CFDA Names: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster, Child Care and Development Fund Cluster, 
Medicaid Cluster, Children's Health Insurance Program 

a rees or disagrees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The Division of Public Assistance (DPA) is strengthening its training for administrative staff to 
verify all payroll coding and processes to expand monitoring. The agency does not concur that 
a PACAP amendment is necessary for those staff providing clerical support outside their 
normal assigned duties and using the random moment time study methodology when recording 
this time worked. The staff used positive time keeping procedures when reporting the time 
worked as clerical support in accordance with their respective sections of chapter VII and used 
the appropriate allocation of DP A-ll so their clerical support activities would be correctly 
charged to the multiple benefitting federal and state programs. 

Agenc Contact (name of person res onsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-024: Six of 60 Medicaid claim lines tested and eight of 60 Children' s Health Insurance Program 
claim lines tested were paid at rates higher than regulations allowed for professional services claim types. 

Questioned Costs: 
CFDA 93.778: $9,070,584 
CFDA 93.767: $435,160 
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CFDA Number: 93.775, 93.777,93.778 and 93.767 

CFDA Name: Medicaid Cluster, Children's Health Insurance Program 

ency agrees or disaorees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The Division of Health Care Services (HCS) identified and self-reported the rate reduction 
associated with the Resource Based Relative Value Scale (RBRVS) in June of2018. 
Corrective action was initiated within one week of identifying the error and a root cause 
analysis completed followed by the implementation of processes and procedures to ensure 
future regulation changes that affects the Medicaid program are monitored from the beginning 
of the process to the end followed up with claims testing to ensure the changes are 
implemented correctly. 

A share point site has also been set up and the discussions have been incorporated into the 
Medicaid Director's monthly meetings and the agency has been assisting providers on 
repayment agreements or assessing whether hardship criteria are applicable. The questioned 
costs have been refunded. 

Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-025: Testing of 60 Medicaid recipients who received Medicaid benefits during FY 18 identified 
eight renewal applications were not processed within 12 months as reguired by federal regulation. Furthermore, 
documentation was not available to support the recertification of one Medicaid recipient. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.775, 93.777, 93.778 

CFDA Name: Medicaid Cluster 

DHSS concurs with the finding. 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DPA continues to update ARIES and collaborate with the depattment's inf01mation technology 
section to implement an electronic document management system to automate access to case 
documentation and improve processing timelines of eligibility determinations and/or 
redetem1inations. 

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
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I DHSS anticipates this finding will be resolved in FY2020. 

Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-026: DHSS information technology (IT) staff did not perform biennial system security reviews of 
the Eligibility Information System CEIS) during FY 18. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.775, 93.777,93.778 

CFDA Name: Medicaid Cluster 

DHSS concurs with the finding. 

Corrective Action (corrective action plarmed): 
FMS Information Technology Services, in collaboration with the Director of Public Assistance 
have prioritized the EIS security reviews to ensure the security plan is updated and maintained 
on an on-going basis. Completion of the security plan is dependent on the cooperation of the 
State of Alaska Office of Information Technology who manages and operates the State 
Mainframe infrastructure that host EIS. 

Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-027: DHSS' IT staff did not properly limit user access to EIS dming FY 18. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.558 and 93.775, 93.777, 93.778 

CFDA Name: TANF Cluster, Medicaid Cluster 

DHSS partially concurs with the findin 

Corrective Action (corrective action lanned): 
FMS Information Technology Services, in collaboration with the Director ofPublic Assistance, 
is evaluating the internal controls associated with EIS authorized access. The agency has 
strengthened and/or implemented internal controls or processes. Prior to the state payroll 
conversion to the Human Resource Management (HRM) system the department had access to 
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an ALDER report with year-to-date personnel changes and it was a critical resource relied on 
by the department to successfully identify employee changes in a timely and cost effective 
mam1er. A similar report has not yet been made available by payroll services of the 
Department of Administration (DOA) and since the department has over 3,000 employees this 
rep01i is key to comply with ISP 171 section 5.4.3. Changing and Disabling/Removing User 
Accounts. 

Other corrective action being implemented includes verification of third party access 
agreements, including any memorandum of understanding (MOU); strengthening departmental 
policy by establishing a one year limit with a reauthorization requirement for third party users; 
formalizing notification procedures and account profile selection; and pursuing the clean-up of 
existing accounts. 

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
I SFY 2019 

Agenc Contact (name of erson responsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-028: Four of the 40 TANF applications tested (1 0 percent) were not processed within 30 days. 
Additionally, 21 of 40 (53 percent) T ANF recipient case files tested lacked documentation supporting the request 
and use of the income and benefit information through the Income Eligibility and Verification System for 
determining eligibility and benefits. 

Eight eligibility errors were identified in testing a random sample of 40 FY 18 T ANF recipient applications 
including: 

• One recipient exceeded the resource limit, but was classified as eligible and inappropriately received one 
month ofT ANF benefits. 

• One recipient reported an income change which was not processed timely resulting in the recipient 
inappropriately receiving four additional months ofT ANF benefits. 

• Two recipients reported on their applications they were not U.S. citizens. The recipients' case files lacked 
evidence the eligibility technician verified the applicants' inunigration status. 

• Four recipients had not completed the required child support section of the applications. The recipients ' 
case files lacked the required signed 1603 Child Support Information form. 

Questioned Costs: Known questioned costs of $1,072 and likely questioned costs exceeding $25,000. 

CFDA Number: 93.558 

CFDA Name: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster 

DHSS concurs with the fmding. 

Corrective Action (corrective action pla1med): 
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DPA continues to strengthen the processes and procedures for administrating eligibility 
determinations with two different eligibility systems. In addition to agency updates to ARIES, 
DPA is collaborating with the department's information technology section to implement an 
electronic document management system to automate access to case documentation and 
improve processing timelines of eligibility determinations and/or redeterminations. 

DPA is also under new leadership. The new director is making compliance and training one of 
the priorities to be addressed. Efforts are already being made to expand the training program 
and to align ongoing training of existing staff with compliance requirements as well as policy 
changes. The agency is also strengthening its business strategies to offset or reduce the adverse 
impact associated with high annual staff turnover exceeding 30% by addressing morale and 
retention as a priority through leadership training and a complete overhaul of hiring processes. 

Finding 2018-029: The FFY 17 ACF-204 annual report was not submitted timely. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93 .558 

CFDA Name: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster 

A ency Agreement (state whether your a ency agrees or disa rees with the findin ): 
DHSS concurs with the finding. 

Corrective Action (corrective action lanned): 
The Division ofPublic Assistance (DPA) is strengthening its tracking processes to ensure 
federal reportin res onsibilities are monitored and the re orts are submitted timely. 

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
I SFY 2019 

A ency Contact (name of person res onsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-030: Eight of 27 TANF cases tested (30 percent) had inaccurate information 
reported in the ACF-199 data file. Additionally, six of27 T ANF cases tested (22 percent) repotied 
work participation activities in the ACF -199 data file that were inaccurate, unsupported, or 
unverified. 
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Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.558 

CFDA Name: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster 

agrees or disa rees with the findin 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The Division of Public Assistance (DPA) is strengthening its processes associated with the 
development of the ACF -199 data file including quality assurance measures necessary for an 
accurate and documented audit trail. 

letion date): 

Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-031: Nine calculation enors (15 percent) were identified in testing 60 FY 18 CCDF program 
beneficiary payments. Eligibility staff of DHSS' Child Care Program Office (CCPO) and grant subrecipient staff 
used incorrect pay factors (seven instances) and incorrect pay information (two instances) when determining 
monthly earned income. 

Questioned Costs: Known questioned costs of $6,650 (CFDA 93.575) and likely questioned costs exceeding 
$25,000. 

CFDA Number: 93.575,93.596 

CFDA Name: Child Care and Development Fund Cluster 

DHSS partially concurs with the findin . 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The Division of Public Assistance (DPA) agrees that 7 cases are in error and partially agrees 
that one is in error but not with the calculations shared by legislative audit. 

DPA is strengthening its training on program requirements and review processes including sub
recipient monitoring to decrease the risk of errors. The division is expanding its training 
program and has increased its numbers of case reviewers. The department anticipates these 
findings will be resolved in FY2019. 
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A enc Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-032: FY 18 testing of 60 CCDF program beneficiaries identified five instances (eight percent) 
where eligibility redeterminations were performed by CCPO or subrecipient staff prior to the minimum 12 month 
standard required by the federal grant. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.575, 93.596 

CFDA Name: Child Care and Development Fund Cluster 

Agency A reement (state whether your agency a!ITees or disagrees with the finding): 
DHSS concurs with the finding. 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DPA is strengthening its training and review processes to decrease the risk of errors in 
eligibility determinations. The division is expanding its training program and has increased its 
nwnbers of case reviewers. 

Sana P. Efud, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-033: Division of Public Assistance CDPA) staff did not sufficiently monitor 
FY 18 subrecipients. Annual risk assessments of the six CCDF subrecipients were not performed as required by 
federal regulations. In addition, monitoring activities outlined in division policy and procedure manuals were not 
performed as required. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.575, 93.596 

CFDA Name: Child Care and Development Fund Cluster 

rees or disa rees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (conective action planned): 
The FMS Grants and Contracts unit, in collaboration with division program manager staff, 
performs a thorough review process for each grant applicant prior to award issuance. The 
solicitations request the following information from the applicants; history of compliance with 
service and grant requirements,_p_revious experienceproviding the same or similar services, 
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demonstration of sustainable fiscal and administrative capacity with qualified executive, 
administrative, and financial staff, and procedures in place to protect client confidentiality. The 
review criteria associated with each solicitation further analyzes the requested information 
mentioned above in conjunction with information known to the grants administrators and 
program manager staff, such as; past history of performance measures, audit history and 
confirmation of the successful resolution of any findings, site or desk reviews, past compliance 
with statutes and regulations, and review of licensing and certifications. 

The DHSS internal policy and procedure #250 Operating Grant Procurement Administration 
details the roles and responsibilities of grant program managers and grant administrators 
throughout the grant cycle. FMS Grants and Contracts unit agrees with the recommendation 
that the written procedures could define the process more clearly to specifically explain that the 
review the program managers are conducting encompasses the pre-award risk assessment 
requirements per the Uniform Guidance 2.CFR 200. The department anticipates resolving this 
finding by updating the aforementioned policy and procedures. 

Additionally. DPA is strengthening its written procedures to incorporate staffing oversight into 
the policy. 

Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-034: DPA staff did not document risk assessments for the 12 FY 18 Women. Infants, and Children 
(WIC) subrecipients as required by the Uniform Guidance. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Numbers: 10.557 

CFDA Names: Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 

Corrective Action (corrective action lanned): 
The Division of Public Assistance (DP A) is developing policies and procedures with a f01mal 
sub-award risk assessment tool. 

Com letion Date (list anticipated com letion date): 

A ency Contact (name of person res onsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 
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Finding 2018-035: One of20 tested FY 18 WIC cash draws did not fully comply with federal cash management 
requirements. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Numbers: 10.557 

CFDA Names: Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 

aorees or disaorees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The FMS Finance Officer will ensure staff follow established procedures when executing 
drawdowns. 

Agency Contact (name of person res onsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Finding 2018-036: For one offom tested months. DPA staff did not perform follow-up on WIC food instruments 
identified as questionable items or suspected errors within 120 days of detection as required by federal regulations. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Numbers: 10.557 

CFDA Names: Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 

a rees or disagrees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The DPA WIC program manager will ensure staff adequately document quality assurance 
activities performed in accordance with procedures per1aining to WIC food instruments and 
compliance with the 120 day requirement. 

A enc Contact (nan1e of person res onsible for corrective action): 
Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 
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Finding 2018-037: Seven potential DHSS shmtfalls were identified for FY 18. 

DHSS concurs with the finding. 

Conective Action (corrective action planned): 
The FMS Finance Officer is developing procedures to document the steps to review and 
analyze Appropriations for potential shortfalls. The procedures will include the steps necessary 
to assess potential shortfalls in advance to mitigate future deficits and maximize revenue 
collections. 

Sana P. Efird, Assistant Commissioner 

Please contact Linnea Osborne at (907) 465-6333 if you have any questions or require additional information. 

Adam Crum 
Commissioner 

CC: Sana P . Efird, Assistant Commissioner 
Donna Steward, Deputy Commissioner 
Albert Wall, Deputy Commissioner 
Renee Gayhart, Acting Director Health Care Services 
Shawnda O'Brien, Director Public Assistance 
Marian Sweet, FMS Deputy Director 
Linnea Osborne, Accountant V 
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THE STATE 

of ALASKA 
GOVERNOR MICHAEL I DUNLE.AVY 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

May 1, 2019 

Tuckerman Babcock p 
Adam Crum, Commissioner tf:J/ 
Department of Health & Social Services 

Deleganon of Authority 

Department of 
Health and Social Services 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 

Anchorage 
3601 C Street. Suite 902 

Anchorage. Alaska 99503-5923 
Main: 907.269.7800 

Fox: 907.269.0060 

Juneau 
P.O. Box 110601 

350 Main Street. Suite 404 
Juneau. Alaska 99811-0601 

Main: 907.465.3030 
Fox: 907.465.3068 

Beginning May 41h, 2019 I will be on travel status and am delegating full signature authority as indicated 
below: 

Sana Efrid will assume as acting Commissioner with full decision and signature authority from 
May 4th- May 9th of :2.019. 

The effective date of this memorandum will begin May 4th as stated above. Authority delegated in this 
memorandum is not subject to sub-delegation and will be ineffective past the dates stated above. 

cc: Amy Oemboski, Deputy Chief of Staff 
DHSS Division Directors 
DHSS Division AOMs 
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Tl iE STATE 

of ALASKA 
GOVERNOR l\llCHAEL j. Dl.JNLEAVY 

April30, 2019 

Kris Curtis 
Legislative Auditor 
Alaska State Legislature 
P.O. Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis, 

Department of Labor and 
Workforce Development 

RECEIVED 

MAY 0 1 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

Office of the Commissioner 

Post Office Box 111 149 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Main: 907.465.2700 

This letter accompanies the Department of Labor and Workforce Development (DLWD) corrective 
action plan for findings noted in the Division of Legislative Audit Preliminary Confidential FY 18 
Statewide Single Audit Report 

As requested, enclosed with this letter is a standardized corrective action plan for each finding on 
agency letterhead. 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Confidential Preliminary Report. 

Sincerely, 

Ct~ 
Dr. Tamika L Ledbetter 
Commissioner 



 

 
Department of Labor and  
Workforce Development  

 
Office of the Commissioner 

 
Post Office Box 111149 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Main: 907.465.2700

 
Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

 
Finding 2018-038: Multiple deficiencies in accounting for FY 18 unemployment compensation fund 
(UCF) activity were identified. Department of Labor and Workforce Development (DLWD) staff did 
not process an FY 18 year-end transaction to clear the UCF suspense receipts liability account. In 
addition, DLWD staff incorrectly recorded monthly and year-end entries to the State’s accounting system 
for FY 18 unemployment insurance benefit expenses, fraud penalties, benefit overpayments and 
allowance for doubtful accounts. 
 
Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding): 
DLWD agrees with the finding. 

 
Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DLWD accounting and administrative staff worked to resolve several prior year audit findings 
some of which inadvertently caused issues with other accounts. DLWD staff worked with the 
auditors and Division of Finance to develop necessary audit adjustments. DLWD accounting 
procedures for UCF activity have been strengthened to reflect the process changes, which is 
partially implemented now with FY 19 monthly entries to the IRIS and will be fully implemented 
with FY 19 year-end entries. 

 
Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
September 1, 2019 

 
Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Rachel Paguio, Chief Financial Officer 
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Department of Labor and  
Workforce Development  

 
Office of the Commissioner 

 
Post Office Box 111149 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Main: 907.465.2700

 
Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

 
Finding 2018-039: Control deficiencies were identified in a DLWD Information Technology (IT) 
system. 
 
Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding): 
DLWD agrees with the finding. 

 
Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
The finding was corrected in April 2018. DLWD strengthened IT system control deficiencies with 
additional supervisory review. 

 
Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
April 2018 

 
Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Paul Hegg, Department Technology Officer 
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Department of Labor and  
Workforce Development  

 
Office of the Commissioner 

 
Post Office Box 111149 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Main: 907.465.2700

 
Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

 
Finding 2018-040: Control deficiencies were identified in DLWD’s IT system security. 

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding): 
DLWD agrees with the finding. 

 
Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DLWD is working with a contract vendor to address control deficiencies. The contractor is 
currently implementing IT system security upgrades under project oversight from DLWD IT staff.

 
Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
July 2019 

 
Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Paul Hegg, Department Technology Officer 
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THE STATE 

01ALASKA 
GOVERNOR .MICHAEL J. DUNLEAVY 

May 2, 2019 

Kris Curtis, CPA 
Legislative Budget and Audit Committee 
Division of Legislative Audit 
PO Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

RECE1VED 

MAY 0 2 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

COMMISSIONERS OFFICE 

P.O. Box 110803 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 -0803 

Main: 907.465.2506 
Toll free tax: 907.465.2503 

Re: Preliminary Audit Report, Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
(DCCED), FY 18 Statewide Single Audit 

Dear Ms. Curtis: 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the recommendations issued in the management letter dated 
April12, 2019. 

The Department agrees with these conclusions and is taking corrective action steps as prescribed in the 
following Single Audit Corrective Action Plans attached. 

If you have additional questions, please feel free to contact me at 465-2500. 

Sincerely, 

Julie Anderson 
Commissioner 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 

- 1-
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Kris Curtis April 30, 2019 
RE: Preliminary Audit Report DCCED FY18 Statewide Single Audit 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-041: A review of six FY 18 unorganized borough payments identified that five were 
calculated inaccurately. An expanded review of all payments determined that 22 of 23 FY 18 
payments to unorganized boroughs were calculated inaccurately. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 10.665 

CFDA Name: Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster 

a rees or disa rees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development's Division of 
Community and Regional Development (DCRA) director will develop and implement 
procedures to ensure the Forest Service Schools and Roads payments are accurate. 

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Robert Pearson, Local Government Specialist V, Department of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Development 
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RE: Preliminary Audit Report DCCED FY18 Statewide Single Aud it 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-042: DCCED's Division of Community and Regional Affairs management did not 
minimize the time between receipt of federal program funds and disbursement to communities. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 10.665 

CFDA Name: Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster 

a rees or disa ees with the findin ): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development's Division of 
Community and Regional Development (DCRA) director will develop and implement 
procedures to ensure the Forest Service Schools and Roads payments are disbursed to 
communities within 30 days. 

letion date : 

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective actio~: 
Robert Pearson, Local Government Specialist V, Department of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Development 
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Kris Curtis April 30, 2019 
RE: Preliminary Audit Report DCCED FY18 Statewide Single Audit 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-043: Quarterly financial reporting for the period ending June 30, 2018 en-oneously 
over-reported $26.1 million in cash disbursements, and no internal controls were in place over the 
reporting process. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.423 

CFDA Name: 1332 State Innovation Waivers 

Corrective Action ( con-ective action planned): 
Administrative Services will develop and implement review and approval procedures over 
SF-425 repmt preparation, and provide training to grant financial management staff 
responsible for preparation of financial repmts. 

Com letion Date 
June 30, 2019 

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Jenny McDowell, Finance Officer, Depattment of Commerce, Community and Economic 
Development 
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Kris Curtis April 30, 2019 
RE: Preliminary Audit Report DCCED FY18 Statewide Single Audit 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-044: No procedures were performed to verify the only subrecipient of the program was 
not suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.423 

CFDA Name: 1332 State Innovation Waivers 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development's Division of 
Insurance Director will develop and implement procedures, and ensure adequate grant 
management training is provided to responsible staff, and ensure there are internal controls 
in place over suspension and debarment requirements. The division has verified on the 
federal SAM.gov site that the subrecipient, the Alaska Comprehensive Health Insurance 
Association (ACHIA), is listed in good standing. The SAM certificate has been added to 
the 1332 reporting file, and language requiring self-disclosure of suspension and debarment 
will be added to the revised grant agreement between ACHIA and SOA for calendar year 
2019 and future years. 

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for cotTective action): 
Anna Latham, Deputy Director, Insurance, Department of Commerce, Community and 
Economic Development 
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Kris Curtis April 30, 2019 
RE: Preliminary Audit Report DCCED FY18 Statewide Single Audit 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-045: The sole subrecipient of the federal award was not registered in the System of 
Award Management prior to receiving a subaward. In addition, Division of Insurance staff failed to 
complete a risk assessment and perform adequate monitoring procedures to ensure the subrecipient 
was in compliance with the terms of the award. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 93.423 

CFDA Name: 1332 State Innovation Waivers 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development's Division of 
Insurance director will develop and implement procedures to ensure there are internal 
controls in place to verify registration in SAM.gov for subrecipients prior to award and to 
perform adequate monitoring procedures to ensure the subrecipient is in compliance with 
the terms of the award. The grantee, the Alaska Comprehensive Health Insurance 
Association (ACHIA), has registered in SAM.gov, as of July 24, 2018. Division of 
Insurance is developing risk assessment measures and monitoring procedures, including 
checklists, to ensure ACHIA is in compliance with the requirements of the award. 

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for conective action): 
Anna Latham, Deputy Director, Insurance, Department of Commerce, Community and 
Economic Development 
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Ti l E STATF 

v
1ALASKA 

April 23 , 20 19 

Alaska State Legislature 
Legislative Budget and Audit Committee 
Divis ion of Legislative Audit 
Attn: Kris Clll1is. CPA, CfSA 
P.O . Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 998 I l-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis, 

Department of Military and 
Veterans Affair·s 

RECEIVED 

MAY 0 2 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

Office o f the Commiss ioner 

I' 0 lk" 5300 
JP.>tR AJ( 9950.5 0800 
1 ~ • .:11n 90:' 4:..>8.ni'103 

rm 90- 428.->0 1? 

The Department of Military and Veterans' Affairs concurs w ith a ll audit findings included in the 
State of Alaska S ingle Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 Preliminary Confidential 
Report. Please see attached corrective actions plans that provide the name of the person(s) 
responsible for corrective actions, the corrective action planned, and the anticipated completion 
date for each finding. 

Several findings have anticipated completion dates which have now passed, all o f which we arc 
pleased to report have been completed. Please see below for additional information on each of 
these findings: 

• Finding 2018-049 (anticipated completion date February 12, 2019): COM PLETED 
All distributed costs for the ITPP have been adjusted based upon a final agreement 
between the USPFO and DMV A. There is currently no Infonnation Technology 
Personnel Plan in place, however, the USPFO has agreed to pay for all direct charges 
recorded on a work order system based upon the "Billed Services" method outlined in 2 
CFR 225. 

• Finding 20 18-050 (anticipated completion date February II , 20 19): COM PLETED 
Procurement has established a checkli st which includes al l necessary rev iews prior to 
Government solicitations for contracts and purchases. This checklist is included with 
work papers in each individ ual solicitation record. 
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• Finding2018-051 (anticipated completion date February 15, 2018): COMPLETED 
The obligating document has been amended to include the Federal A ward Identification 
Number (FAIN), Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA), and the 
federal awarding agency. 

If you or the members of your team have questions for would like additional information, please 
contact our Finance Officer, Mr. Tim Kelly at (907) 428-7250. 

Sincerely, 

Torrence W. Saxe 
Brig Gen (AK), AKNG 
Commissioner/The Adjutant General 
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THE STAT E 

(~~LASKA 
GOVERN OR fv!ICHA£ 1. I. DUN LEAVY 

Departmcn t of Military and 
Veterans Affairs 

Oni~c of the Commissioner 

P.O Box 5000 
JBER. AK 9950~·0800 
Main; 907.'12!3.6003 

Fax 907 .~28.60 19 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-046: 
DMV A Staff lacks department specific written procedures tor preparing the SEF A. Further, 
there was no evid~nce that supervisory review of DMV A's FY 18 Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards was performed prior to submission to the Department of Administration. 

Questioned Costs: None 

a recs or disa rccs with the find in 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
After implementation ofiRJS in 2015, and each year afterwards, DOA Division ofFinance has 
provided written guidance for preparing the SEF A. Each year, different guidance was given as 
well as different processes to gather the data. The guidance provided was inconsistent and 
new reports and new information gathering procedures were required to be developed each 
year to satisfy the neec.led data. Since there were no previous reports written for this process, 
DMV A has been requireq to develop different reports and procedures for each year in the 
preparatiOf! of the SEF A report. Throughout each of these draft processes and upon 
completion of each iteration, the SEF A was reviewed by the Finance Officer and the Division 
Operations Manager. In 2018, there were no errors identified by the SOA Single Audit 
Coordinator. Based upon the most recent guidance, the Finance Officer will develop and 
implement written procedures for the preparation, review, and documented approval of the 
DMVA SEFA. 

Completion Date (list anticipated oomP'letian d~te): \ 
August 31, 2019 -

I 
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TIlE STATE 

l~~LASKA 
GOVERNOR MICH.\EL f. DUNLE..~VY 

Department of Military and 
Veterans Affairs 

Office of the Commissioner 

P.O. Box 5800 
JBER. AK 99505-0800 
Main· 907.428.6003 

Fox: 907.428.6019 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-047: 
Department of Military and Veteran's Affair's management did not ensure the State's accounting 
system was updated for changes made to the FFY 17 federally certified Facilities Inventory and 
Support Plan (FISP). 

Questioned Costs: $46,954 

CFDA Number: 12.40 I 

CFDA Name: National Guard Operations and Maintenance Projects Program 

CotTective Action (corrective action planned): 
Division of Administrative Services staff will work with Facilities Maintenance Office 
personnel to develop and implement policies and proce~ures to ensure a timely annual update 
to the State accounting system. DMV A has implemented a process to update accounting 
records effective each State of Alaska fiscal year end effective June 30,2019. This process 
includes notification to the DMV A Finance Officer from the FMO Administrative Officer 
upon completion. 

't""' 

-

nsible for corrective action : 
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Tiff: STAT[ 

(~~LASKA 
GOVERNOR {\'UCH.-\EL I. DUNLE..·\VY 

Department of Military and 
Veterans Affairs 

Office orrhe Comm issioner 

P.O. Box 5800 
JBER AK 99505·0800 
Main: 907.428.6003 

Fox: 907.428 60 19 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-048: 
Three of 60 FY 18 NGMOMP timesheets tested (five percent) were entered into the State's 
accounting system with incorrect coding. Three of25 personal service adjustments tested found 
three adjustments (12 percent) were inaccurate. One adjustment was recorded at the funding 
profile level, which identifies whether an expenditure is federal or state, instead of at the 
program level, which allows the expenditure to be charged to the correct federal program. Two 
adjustment errors were related to quarterly centralized personnel plan (CPP) allocations which 
incorrectly omitted one position in the calculation. 

Questioned Costs: $1 ,67 5 

CFDA Number: 12.401 

CFDA Name: National Guard Operations and Maintenance Projects Program 

): 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
Division of Administrative Services (DAS) staff will work with Facilities Maintenance Office personnel 
to develop and implement policies and procedures to ensure each timesheet is accurately recorded in 
the State accounting system. DAS staff has developed a process which will allow for the review of 
timesheet data extracted directly from the IRIS HRM portion of the State accounting system. This 
process enhances the review and correction of draft timesheet entry data prior to final recording for 
payroll and will lower the error rate for payroll input. This procedure is currently in place for DAS and 
will be implemented for the Facilities Maintenance Office by February 28, 2019. A policy will be 
completed by March 31, 2019. 

The action plan above will not correct the errors which occurred for the CPP adjusting entries. The 
CPP adjusting entries are calculations ba~d upon an agreement with the United States Property and 
Fiscal Office. This agreement allocates labor costs to the Master Cooperative Agreement Appendices. 
Th is is a heavily manual process which is internal to DAS and utilizes formulas instead of automated 
processes. DAS Finance Officer is currently adapting a more automated approach to maintain the 
calculation and will implement policies and procedures based upon the process. The processes are 
expected to be implemented by February 28, 2019, and policies will be in place within two iterations 
of the process. 

Page 1 of2 
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T HE STATE 

01ALASKA 
GOVERNOR MICHAEL f. DllNL£.-\VY 

Com letion Date (list antici 
May 1, 2019 

Department of Military and 
Veterans Affairs 

Office of the Commissioner 

P.O. Sox 5800 
J6ER. AK 99505·0800 
Main: 907.428.6003 

fox: 907.428.60 19 

Page2 of2 
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TI IE ST.-\TI~ 

~1ALASKA 
GOV'ER.'I OR MICHAEL I. DUNLEAVY 

Department of 1\t[ilitary and 
Veterans Affairs 

Ol'lic~ ofth~: Commissioner 

P.O. Box 5800 
J8ER, AK 99505-0800 
Main: 907:428.6003 

Fox: 907.428.6019 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-049: 
DMVA management failed to obtain federal approval to charge the NGMOMP program for 
indirect information technology personal service expenditure. 

Questioned Costs: $106, ll 0 

CFDA Number: 12.401 

CFDA Name: National Guard Operations and Maintenance Prqjects Program 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
In 20 18, Division of Administrative Services (DAS) management attempted multiple 
negotiations with the United States Property and Fiscal Office (USPFO) in order to charge 
direct and allocable infonnation technology labor costs. While the USPFO approved direct and 
allocable charges in 2017, there were two main obstacles in 2018. The primary obstacle was 
the fact the Master Cooperative Agreement (MCA) does not allow for the allocation of 
information technology labor costs; however, the MCA does allow accounting, procurement, 
and human resources personnel costs to be charged to its appendices. There are other States 
which allow for IT cost allocation, but it is not widely recognized. Although the USPFO had 
initially agreed with federal auditors that the methodology was sound and Alaska was a 
pioneer in this type of distribution, he later would not sign. Additionally, the MCA 
specifically prohibits the term "indirect" by stating only direct costs are aJlowed. Terminology 
used during negotiations was easily misunderstood. The second main issue was the calculation 
utilized to do the allocation. While it followed the methodology of the centralized personnel 
plan, the cost pool used as a basis was unfavorable to the spread of the allocation. The 
corrective action plan for the ITPP is to adjust questioned cost to appropriate coding. 
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TilE STAlE 

(~~LASKA 
GOV'EP..NOR MICHAEL J. DUNLEAVY 

Department of tvlilita ry and 
Veterans Affairs 

Oftice of the Commissioner 

P 0. Box 5800 
JI~ER AK 99505-0800 
Main: 907.428.6003 

Fox: 907.428.6019 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-050: 
The audit reviewed a random sample of nine procurement files and one ( ll percent) did not have 
documentation to support a notice of intent to award was sent to all bidders. Additionally, one 
judgmentaJly selected procuremept file did not have documentation that the solicitation was 
publicly noticed. A review of the State's online public notices system found that no public 
notice was issued for the solicitation. Further, a review of 19 procurement tiles found 14 files 
(74 percent) did not contain evidence that staff verified the contractor was not suspended or 
deban·ed in the federal Excluded Parties List System. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 12.401 

CFDA Name: National Guard Operations and Maintenance Projects Program 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DMV A Procurement Section has set processes in place to ensure documented information of 
all of solicitations posted to the OPN are printed and placed into the solicitation folders. 
Process includes a checklist of requirements for solicitation and sample solicitation folders 
have been created with tabs indicating the requirements for solicitations. 

DMVA DAS Procurement personnel have been briefed and a follow up email sent detailing 
the requirements of procurements involving federal funding and the Excluded Parties List 
System (SAM). Email detailed the SAM will be checked to see if the vendor is debarred or 
suspended. This includes purchase orders, delivery order, prior to entering into a contract, and 
p rior to the renewal of a contract. 
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THE STATE 
01ALASKA 

GOVERNOR MICH."..EL J, DUNLEAVY 

Department of Military and 
Veterans Affairs 

Oftice of the Commissioner 

P.O. Box 5800 
JBER, AK 99505-0800 
Main: 907.428.6003 

fax: 907.428.6019 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-051: 
A review of all four FY 18 Disaster Grants program sub recipients obligating award documents 
found the documents did not include all federally required infonnation. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 97.036 

CFDA Name: Disaster Grants- Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

The Obligating Award Document wiJl be amended to include the FAIN and CFDA name, and 
ensure the federal awardin a enc .name is identified on the document. 
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TilE STATE 

~'ALASKA 
GOVERHOR MICH.-\EL f. DUNLEAVY 

Department of Military and 
Veterans Affairs 

Office of the Commissiont:r 

P.O. Box 5800 
JBER. AK 99505·0800 
Moin: 907.428.6003 

Fox: 907.428.6019 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018~052: 
Three potential DMV A shortfalls were identified for FY 18. 

Questioned Costs: None 

Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
DMV A concurs that all revenue posting and collections should be tracked and identified to 
avoid shortfalls. Many of the unbilled expenses posted in AKSAS prior to conversion. Due to 
the timing of RSA transactions processing and transition into IRJS, receivables were unable to 
be posted prior to the cutoff for conversion. DMV A is working with the Army Guard 
Facilities administrative support staff to ensure all expenses posted to the appropriation are 
correct and eligible for billing against the federal year originally posted. DMV A is actively 
tracking any unresolved revenue collections and found the potential shortfall is resolved by 
taking one of the following actions: 1) working with DOF to resolve conversion related 
transactions~ 2) pursue collection of federal billings from the National Guard through the 
Cooperative Agreement; or 3) vendor collection for returned items related to the National 
Guard Cooperative Agreement. We anticipate completing action with DOA, Division of 
Finance by June 30,2018 and the National Guard by September 30,2018 to determine if 
further action is needed. 

- - . . 
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THE STATE Department of Natural Resources 
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 

GOVERNOR MICHAEL J. D UNLEAVY 

550 West 71h Avenue, Suite 1400 
Anchorage, AK 99501-3561 

Main: 907.269-8431 
Fox: 907-269-89 18 

Apiil29, 2019 

K.ris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 
Legislative Budget and Audit 
PO Box 113300 
Juneau, AJ( 99811-3300 

RECEIVED 

APR 2 9 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDH 

Re: FY2018 Statewide Single Audit, Department of Natural Resources (DNR), 
Preliminary Audit Response 

Dear Ms. Curtis, 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a wtitten response to the April 12, 2019, 
Confidential Preliminary Audit Report on State of Alaska, Single Audit for the Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 2018. The Corrective Action Plans for the findings below are attached. 

Finding No. 2018-053 
Finding No. 2018-054 
Finding No. 2018-055 
Finding No. 2018-056 
Finding No. 2018-057 
Finding No. 2018-058 
Finding No. 2018-059 
Finding No. 2018-060 
Finding No. 2018-061 
Finding No. 2018-062 
Finding No. 2018-063 

Sincerely, 

/J / ./~· {;#...u':J L-V . ~ 
Corri Feige, Commis ioner 
Department ofNatural Resources 

Alaska Pennanent Fund Transfers 
FERC Transfers 
Inventory Valuation 
Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards 
USFS Timesheets 
Timesheet Manual Calculation Procedures 
Function Codes 
Forestry Timesheet Delegations 
Forestry Aircraft Rental Agreements 
BLM Timesheets 
Potential Shortfalls 



DDepartment of NNatural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-053: The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) did not transfer to the Alaska 
Permanent Fund all dedicated mineral lease revenues received during FY 18.    

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR disagrees with Finding No. 2018-053. We continue to rely on the legal analysis by the 
Attorney General’s office, dated November 9, 2018, which concluded that the adjustments 
made to FY2018 deposits to the Permanent Fund were appropriate.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

N/A

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

N/A

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Fabienne Peter-Contesse, Director of Support Services Division
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-054: Royalty revenues eligible for transfer to the Constitutional Budgetary 
Reserve Fund (CBRF) were not transferred during FY 18 and revenues that should have 
remained in the CBRF were moved to the general fund.

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR disagrees with Finding No. 2018-054. We continue to rely on the legal analysis by the 
Attorney General’s office in 2018 which concluded that payments related to the FERC 
settlements were not to be transferred to the CBRF.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

N/A

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

N/A

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Fabienne Peter-Contesse, Director of Support Services Division
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-055: DNR’s inventory valuation methodology did not comply with generally 
accepted governmental accounting standards.  

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-055.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

Forestry will use a weighted average method for inventory valuation. Forestry has been 
working with the Office of Information Technology on a new inventory software which is 
nearing completion. The appropriate warehouse staffing in Fairbanks, Palmer and Tok will be 
trained to use the new system upon inception.

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

Completion is estimated to be by July 1, 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

John Hoch, Forestry Cache Manager
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DDepartment of Natural RResources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-056: DNR management lacked sufficient written procedures for the preparation 
and review of DNR’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-056.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR will develop complete and accurate written procedures for the preparation and review 
of DNR’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

The anticipated completion date is September 2019; due date of the 2019 SEFA.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Daniel Reierson, Accountant IV
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-057: Testing of FY 18 personal service expenditures (60 State personnel 
timesheets) charged to the USFS Fire Suppression program identified multiple instances of 
noncompliance including lack of the federally required OF-288 timesheets, unsigned 
timesheets, State timesheet hours that did not match federal timesheets, unsigned hazard pay 
forms, work-rest ratio violations, and unallowable compensation for meal breaks and shift 
differential pay on travel days. Testing of 60 emergency firefighter (EFF) timesheets identified 
missing employee signatures.

Questioned Costs: 
CFDA 10.U09: $154,056
CFDA 10.U10: $8,968

CFDA Number: 10.U08, 10.U09, 10.U10

CFDA Name: USFS Fire Suppression

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-057.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR’s Division of Forestry (DOF) will update and modify the standing policies relating to the 
timesheet processes that require adherence to the United States Forest Services (USFS) Fire 
Suppression Program guidelines and ensure enforcement by DOF employees. DOF will 
improve the existing timesheet checklist procedure, verifying that all documents needed have 
been received, accurately reported, and signed by the employee and supervisor, including OF-
288s and all other necessary back up documentations for the time charged. The update shall 
also include the review and assurance regarding compliance on work-rest ratio, hazard pay, and 
shift differential pay in travel status. This information will also be updated in the Alaska 
Incident Business Management Handbook (AIBMH) and the Master Agreement. DOF will 
work with the USFS to modify the Master Agreement to identify allowable exceptions to the 
current OF-288 requirement.
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Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

The department anticipates the questioned items to be resolved in December 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Joel Del Rosario, Administrative Operations Manager
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-058: The Department of Administration’s Division of Personnel management 
lacks adequate review procedures over the manual calculations necessary for processing 
DNR’s Division of Forestry timesheets.

Questioned Costs: Indeterminate

CFDA Number: 10.U08, 10.U09, 10.U10

CFDA Name: USFS Fire Suppression 

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-058.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR has implemented documenting time on their timesheets in accordance with the 
Collective Bargaining unit agreements.  With clearly documented time on timesheets, it 
will assist in the manual calculation processes, which in turn assists with the certification 
process. DOA-DOPLR will also implement additional timesheet processing and 
certification training specific to DNR-Forestry for the upcoming fire season.

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

April 30, 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Rachel Atkinson, Statewide Payroll Supervisor (DOA/DOPLR)
Joel Del Rosario, Administrative Operations Manager, Forestry (DNR)
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-059: The audit identified two function (fire) codes in the State accounting 
system that were assigned to an incorrect federal program.

Questioned Costs: 
10.U09: $31,067
10.U10: $11,526

CFDA Number: 10.U09, 10.U10

CFDA Name: USFS Fire Suppression

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-059.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR’s previous procedures in forestry fire accounting did not include reconciliations of 
function codes to federal programs. DNR fiscal has implemented a new internal control 
regarding fire ownership that is executed monthly to reduce the risk of fire misclassifications 
like this from happening in the future.

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

These changes have already been implemented in 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Daniel Reierson, Federal Accounting Supervisor
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-060: Testing a random sample of FY 18 non-personal services expenditures 
charged to the USFS Fire Suppression program (60 transactions) and the BLM Fire 
Suppression program (60 transactions) identified 10 transactions authorized by DNR’s 
Division of Forestry staff lacking an appropriate delegation of authority.

Questioned Costs: None

CFDA Number: 10.U08, 10.U09, 10.U10 and 15.U04, 15.U05, 15.U06, 15.U07

CFDA Name: USFS Fire Suppression, BLM Fire Suppression

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-060.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR management shall review and revise all standing delegations of authority, as well as the 
possibility of adding delegations for additional Forestry staff members. They will also ensure 
that the authorized signatories obtain the proper knowledge and training necessitating the 
staff’s cognizance of a cost being allowable, appropriately coded, within the period of 
performance and scope of their authority.  All appropriate statute, regulations, policies and 
procedures related to an authority will be adhered to. There are varying delegation of authority 
forms within the division that will be updated and standardized. 

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

The department anticipates the issue to be resolved by June 30, 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Joel Del Rosario, Administrative Operations Manager
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-061: The audit identified nine aircraft rental agreements and seven emergency 
equipment rental agreements not in compliance with the competitive bidding process outlined 
in the State procurement code. In addition, the audit identified five vendors were selected 
without a competitive procurement process or were paid at rates higher than allowed by the 
contracts.

Questioned Costs: None

CFDA Number: 10.U09 and 15.U05, 15.U07

CFDA Name: USFS Fire Suppression, BLM Fire Suppression

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-061.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

The Invitation to Bid (ITB) with strict evaluation criteria, for Emergency Aircraft Services to 
Wildland Fire support closed on February 20, 2019. Notice of Award and Master Agreements 
were established and issued to the selected vendors as of March 19, 2019. Forestry is 
proactively ensuring adherence to the appropriate state procurement statutes, relating to aircraft 
rental.

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

The audit finding is resolved as of March 19, 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Stephen Elwell, Aviation Supervisor

IV - 73 



DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-062: Testing of FY 18 personal service expenditures (60 State personnel 
timesheets) charged to the BLM Fire Suppression program identified multiple instances of 
noncompliance including lack of the federally required OF-288 timesheets, unsigned 
timesheets, State timesheet hours that did not match federal timesheets, unsigned hazard pay 
forms, work-rest ratio violations, and unallowable compensation for meal breaks and shift 
differential pay on travel days. Testing of 60 EFF timesheets identified missing employee 
signatures.

Questioned Costs: 
CFDA 15.U05: $57,604
CFDA 15.U07: $53,886

CFDA Number: 15.U04, 15.U05, 15.U06, 15.U07

CFDA Name: BLM Fire Suppression 

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-062.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR’s Division of Forestry (DOF) will update and modify the standing policies relating to the 
timesheet processes that require adherence to the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Fire 
Suppression Program guidelines and ensure enforcement by DOF employees. DOF will 
improve the existing timesheet checklist procedure, verifying that all documents needed have 
been received, accurately reported, and signed by the employee and supervisor, including OF-
288s and all other necessary back up documentations for the time charged. The update shall 
also include the review and assurance regarding compliance on work-rest ratio, hazard-pay and 
shift differential pay in travel status. This information will also be updated in the Alaska 
Incident Business Management Handbook (AIBMH) and the Master Agreement. DOF will 
work with BLM to modify the Master Agreement to identify allowable exceptions to the 
current OF-288 requirement.

IV - 74 



Page 2 of 2

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

The department anticipates the questioned items to be resolved in December 2019.

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Joel Del Rosario, Administrative Operations Manager
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DDepartment of Natural Resources  
 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1400
Anchorage, AK  99501-3561

Main: 907.269-8431
Fax: 907-269-8918

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2018-063: Four potential shortfalls were identified for FY 18.

Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding):

DNR agrees with Finding No. 2018-063.

Corrective Action (corrective action planned):

DNR is currently working with DMVA on finalizing the RSA billings that are included in the 
identified shortfall appropriations. In addition, our internal controls regarding RSAs has been 
changed to include a weekly review of the outstanding billing transactions by the DNR finance 
officer.

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

June 30, 2019

Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action):

Luke Canady, DNR Finance Officer

Completion Date (list anticipated completion date):

The department anticipates the questioned items to be resolved in December 2019.
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TI IE STATE 

of ALASKA Department of Fish and Game 

GOVERNOR MICHAEL J. DUNLEAVY 

May 3, 2019 

Ms. Kris Curtis 
Legislative Auditor 
Division of Legislative Audit 
PO Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis: 

RECEIVED 

'MAY 0 3 2019 

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 

Office of the Commissioner 
Headquarters Office 

1255 West 8th Street 
P.O. Box 115526 

Juneau. Alaska 99811-5526 
Main: 907.465.6136 

Fox: 907.465.2332 

The Alaska Department ofFish and Game (ADFG) is in receipt ofthe fiscal year 2018 (FY 
2018) confidential preliminary audit report State of Alaska, Single Audit for the Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 2018. This letter is being sent to address the fmdings of the audit and the plan for 
corrective action for each finding. 

Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-064: The Department of Fish and Game's (DFG) FY 18 indirect cost rate 
calculation contained multiple errors. 

Questioned Costs: 

CFDA 15.605: $160,075 
CFDA 15.611: $265,336 

CFDA Number: 15.605, 15.611 

CFDA Name: Fish and Wildlife Cluster 

ADFG pruiially agrees with this finding. ADGF agrees that an inconsistent methodology 
was applied to some schedules on the FY18 Indirect Cost Rate Proposal (ICRP). ADGF 
also agrees that calculation en·ors occurred on two schedules, resulting in an inaccurate rate 
calculation, which was not identified during the review process. ADFG does not agree that 
it over collected indirect costs in FY18. The calculated rate for the FY18 ICRP was 
submitted, reviewed, and approved by the US Department of the Interior (DOl). During the 
ne otiation rocess, DOl has the discretion to ad'ust ADFG' s ro osed rate before an 
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agreement is signed. DOI accepted the proposed rate and entered into a signed agreement 
with ADFG to allow that rate to be applied for FY18. Once the agreement is in place, 
ADFG is obligated to adhere to the DOI approved rate. During FY18, ADFG billed indirect 
to federal programs consistently and appropriately using the DOI approved rate. 

 
Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
ADFG has returned to using actual expenditures as budgeted estimates to calculate the 
proposed indirect rate. The state’s reporting system, ALDER, has stabilized to the point 
where accurate data is more readily available and modifications to the calculation 
workbooks has reduced the potential for data entry errors. This change in methodology 
streamlines the calculation and reconciliation process, aiding in the production of a more 
accurate rate. 

 
Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
June 15, 2018 

 
Agency Contact (name of person responsible for corrective action): 
Rae Mosier, Finance Officer 

 
 
Finding 2018-065: Ten of 24 covered transactions tested for federal suspension and debarment 
failed to meet federal requirements. 

Questioned Costs: None 
 
CFDA Number: 15.605, 15.611 
 
CFDA Name: Fish and Wildlife Cluster 
 
Agency Agreement (state whether your agency agrees or disagrees with the finding): 
ADFG agrees that the policy and procedure for suspension and debarment compliance 
should be strengthened. While our procurement unit has a policy and procedure for 
traditional purchases, some state purchases, including air charters, are exempt from the 
purchasing policy. These purchases require additional attention. Although searches on 
SAM.gov are conducted routinely, we agree that there has been a lack of consistency for 
purchases outside of the state’s procurement policy. 

 
Corrective Action (corrective action planned): 
ADGF will create a policy and procedure that meets the requirements of Title 2 CFR 
§180.300 for purchases that are exempt from the state procurement policy. The new 
procedure will be administered by our recently established Grants and Contracts unit, 
which was created for the purpose of streamlining administrative procedures relating to 
federal spending and compliance and thereby minimizing risk. 

 
Completion Date (list anticipated completion date): 
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I June 30, 2019 

onsible for corrective action : 

Finding 2018-066: One of six DFG procurement specialists responsible for processing Fish 
and Wildlife Cluster procurements was not certified under the State's procurement officer 

training and certification program. 

Questioned Costs: None 

CFDA Number: 15.605, 15.611 

CFDA Name: Fish and Wildlife Cluster 

ADFG disagrees with this finding. Fairbanks staff that was delayed in certification was in 
the process of re-certifying as a level 3 procurement officer when the training requirements 
changed statewide. The new requirements for level3 included additional in-person training 
that was not offered in Fairbanks in a timely manner. However, the procurement officer did 
maintain a level 2 certification while waiting for additional training to meet the 
requirements for level3. No level 3 purchases were made during the lapse in level 3 
certification. ADGF provides additional support for procurement staff with supervision and 
training when there are delays in training classes. As of June 30, 2018, all procurement 
officers were certified at the a ro riate levels for their urchasin authori . 

Not necess 

June 30, 20 18 

Sincerely, 

~ 
Doug Vincent-Lang 
Commissioner, Department ofFish and Game 
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TilE STATE 

l~~LASKA 
Department of Transportation 

and 
Public Facilities 

April 25, 2019 

GOVERNOR tvllCHAEL J Dlfl'IL.L4 . .V•t 

RECEIVED 

APR'2 9 2019 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISS rONER 
John MacKinnon, Commissioner 

3 132 Channel Drive 
PO Box 112500 

.Juneau. Alaska 998 11 -2500 
Main: 907.465.3900 

do t.alasko.gov 

Kris Curtis, Legislative Auditor 
Division of Legislative Audit 
P.O. Box 1 13300 LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis, 

This is in response to the findings contained in the confidential preliminary audit report on State of 
A laska, Single Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018. The department's responses and 
corrective action plan for each find ing contained in the Division of Legislative Audit' s preliminary 
audit report for Fiscal Year 2018 are outlined below. 

Finding 2018-067: Twenty-three of 45 (5 1 percent) FY 18 Department of Transportation & Public 
Facilities (DOTPF) expenditures tested that processed during July 2018 and August 2018 were 
incorrectly coded to FY19. 

Department response: Agree. 

The department agrees that 51% of the documents tested were initially incorrectly coded to 
FY/9 and corrected prior to the end of the reappropriation period. Fiscal year-end process 
training was conducted prior to the reappropriation period and again after identification of 
the incorrect expenditure postings. The department has implemented a process and 
procedure to enter service dates on the expenditure financial transactions and has updated 
accounting templates with a ''TASK" requirement during the reappropriation period to 
identify the correct fiscal year when good.'i and/or services were purchased or provided. The 
department has developed an ALDER report to monitor fiscal year-end activity. The 
department will provide additional training to staff in May and June 2019. 

Completion Date: August 30, 2019 
Agency Contact: Roger Baines, Finance Officer 

Finding 2018-068: DOTPF accounting staff's pol icies and procedures for calculating unavailable 
revenue incon·ectly inc luded inval id expenditures which overstated unavai lable revenue. 
Additionally, DOTPF staff incorrectly recorded billed revenues in FY 18 thereby understating 
unavailable revenue. 

'"Keep A laska lvfovinf{ throuf{h service and infrastructure. " 
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Department response: Agree. 

The department agrees with this finding. Transactions in draft or held status should not be 
included as prior year expenditures per the Unavailable Revenues JVA 's email from 
Courtney Johnson on October 5, 2018. DOT&PF has updated the Recording Unavailable 
Revenue for Fiscal Year-End procedures to eliminate running an ALDER report that would 
identify transactions in draft or held status. Training will be provided to staff when 
processing CHBIJVC documents for moving cash expenses to the correct fiscal year (e.g. 
FY2020-FY2019) during the reappropriation period Training will include identifying cash 
expenses that have gone through the Reimbursement Output Cycle and require a 
receivable/revenue adjustment. 

Completion Date: 
Agency Contact: 

August 30, 2019 
Geri Henricksen 

Finding 2018-069: Detailed testing ofDOT&PF's input ofFY18 capital assets into IRIS identified 
multiple errors. 

Department response: Agree. 

2 

Corrective action includes working through identified fixed asset errors to ensure all 
identified issues are corrected in IRIS prior to the next reporting period The department will 
work in collaboration with the state accountant for guidance in improving DOT&PF's new 
asset management and reporting process as well as updating DOT&PF's written process and 
procedures. 

Completion Date: August 20, 2019 
Agency Contact: Roger Baines, Finance Officer 

Finding 2018-070: The Alaska International Airport System FY18 financial statement audit was 
issued and provided to Division of Finance (DOF) on December 12, 2018 approximately 10 weeks 
after the deadline established by DOF. 

Department response: Partially Agree. 

The department partially agrees with this finding. The condition stated in the finding that 
AlAS was 10 weeks late in providing audited financial statements to DOF. The statement 
does not appear to take into consideration that AlAS and its external auditor had established 
a schedule designed to meet DOF's deadline for timely issuance of AlAS financial 
statements, but that schedule was significantly disrupted as a result of AlAS not receiving 
prerequisite accounting information from DOF in a timely manner. This was the root cause 
for AlAS not meeting its deadline. 

The context section of the finding states that an audit adjustment was made to correct activity 
once the final audit was issued. The statement appears to imply that the draft financial 
statements were erroneous; however, AlAS's understanding is that the only audit adjustment 
required by Legislative Audit after receipt of the final audit report was to correct DOF 
OPEB accounting. 

"Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure. " 
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Corrective action is for AlAS to request and receive DOF's approval of a modified financial 
statement audit schedule, and for DOF to agree to provide prerequisite accounting 
information to AlAS in accordance with the schedule. Adoption of and commitment to that 
schedule should afford AlAS reasonable opportunity to plan and schedule their independent 
external audit, and internal accounting staff resources to help ensure AlAS and its external 
auditors are able to meet DOF financial statement audit schedule deadlines. 

3 

Completion Date: AlAS has proposed revised audit schedule to DOF and has requested 
concurrence that they will adopt to establish new schedule. No further 
action required by AlAS. 

Agency Contact: Keith Day, CPA, AlAS Controller 

Finding 2018-071: There was no evidence that supervisory review ofDOTPF's Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards was performed prior to submission. 

Department response: Agree. 

The department agrees with this finding. DOT&PF has included steps to the department's 
written procedures for preparation of the Federal Schedule,· the SEFA team will review and 
initial the Department of Administration's instructions and checklist prior to beginning work 
on the Federal Schedule: and a workflow has been added that documents and defines the 
team compiling the Federal Schedule data, financial review of data by an Accountant IV, and 
approval by an Accountant V prior to submission. 

Completion Date: 
Agency Contact: 

Fiscal Year 2019 
Geri Henricksen 

Finding 2018-072: DOTPF accounting staff did not initiate collection efforts during FY 18 to recoup 
overpayments related to Marine Highway employee payroll advances. 

Department response: Agree. 

A reconciliation of overpayments is currently underway to ensure the calculations are 
correct. Once the reconciliation is complete, collection efforts will begin. 

Completion Date: June 30, 2019 
Agency Contact: Roger Baines, Finance Officer 

Finding 2018-073: Three potential DOTPF shortfalls were identified for FY 18. 

Department response: Agree. 

The department agrees that three appropriations appear to be in shortfall. 

The appropriation group T004 for BFY 2018 identified by Division of Legislative Audit has 
current encumbered obligations recorded and revenue collection efforts are underway. 

DOT&PF has been in communication with DOA to request appropriation extensions to 
collect the revenue for expenses incurred through disaster/emergency capital projects. 
DOT &PF's intention is to collect this revenue from Department of Military and Veteran's 

"Keep Alaska Moving through service and irifrastructure. " 
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Affairs (DMVA). DOT&PFwill continue to work with DOA and DMVA to extend the 
appropriations and collect the revenue. 

Completion Date: June 30, 2019 
Agency Contact: Roger Baines, Finance Officer 

The Department of Transportation & Public Faci lities appreciates the opportunity to respond to the 
Preliminary State of Alaska Single Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 and looks forward 
to working with you on making improvements in FY19. 

7-f-fJ. ~~~ 
Commissioner 

cc: Sunny Haight, Division Operations Manager 
Geri Henricksen, CIP Accountant 

"Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure. " 
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May 6, 2019 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 
Alaska State Legislature 
Legislative Budget and Audit Committee 
Division of Legislative Audit 
PO Box 113300 
Juneau, AK 99811-3300 

Dear Ms. Curtis: 

RECEIVED 

MAY 0 6 2019 

LEGlSLATIVE AUDIT 

Your letter dated April 1 2, 201 9 requests a corrective action plan related to Finding 
2018-074 of the State of Alaska's Fiscal Year 2018 Single Audit which states, "The 
Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation did not collect all FY18 revenues statutorily 
dedicated to the Alaska Permanent Fund." 

As you know, in the FY 201 8 operating budget, the Alaska Legislature chose to only 
appropriate 25% of the royalty payments to the principal of the permanent fund (sec. 
24(a), ch 1, SSLA 2017). Following this event, APFC received legal advice from the 
Department of Law that the 50% royalty payments set forth in AS 37.13.01 O(a)(2) 
required an appropriation to be effective, and therefore the permanent fund was only 
legally entitled to receive the 25% of royalty payments required by the Alaska 
Constitution (See Article 9, Section 1 5 of the Alaska Constitution). 

Based on the Department of Law's advice to date, for FY 2018, APFC did not create or 
account for a liability owing to the permanent fund for the statutory royalty payments set 
forth in AS 37.13.01 O(a)(2) (i.e. those above the 25% constitutional floor). While we 
appreciate that the advice we have received from Department of Law may have been 
different than the legal advice you have received, we believe the accounting practices 
that we implemented were appropriate and proper based on the legal advice that we 
were provided. Consequently, we disagree with your conclusion that there was a failure 
on the part of APFC in FY 2018 to collect the royalty payments owed to the permanent 
fund. 

Si/.rely, 

'(~~/ 
Valerie Mertz, CPA ~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Cc: Craig Richards, APFC Chair of Board of Trustees 
Angela Rodell, Chief Executive Officer 
Chris Poag, General Counsel 

Enclosed: Single Audit Correction Plan for Finding No. 2018-07 4 
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Single Audit Corrective Action Plan 

Finding 2018-074: The Alaska Petmanent Fund Corporation did not collect all FY 18 
revenues statutorily dedicated to the Alaska Permanent Fund. 

Based upon legal advice received to date from Depa1tment of Law, APFC disagrees with 
this findin . 

Corrective Action corrective action 
None needed 
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LEGISLATIVE BUDGET AND AUDIT CO:Ml\1ITTEE 

Members of the Legislative Budget 
and Audit Committee: 

Division of Legislative Audit 

May 10, 2019 

P.O. Box 113300 
Juneau. AK 99811-3300 

(907) 465-3830 
FAX (907) 465-2347 
1egaudit@akleg.gov 

Agency responses to audit findings are included in the corrective action plan in Section IV of 
this rep01i. 

Generally, the agencies concur with the findings. There are, however, responses to 14 of the 
findings which we believe warrant further comments as shown below. 

Finding No. 2018-015 

We have reviewed the Department of Revenue's (DOR) response. Legal analysis 
provided by the Department of Law was reviewed and considered during the audit, as 
was legal analysis provided by the Legislative Division of Legal Services. The 
Legislative Legal Services' analysis was rooted in a plain reading of the constitution 
and concluded that the monies should be deposited into the Constitutional Budget 
Reserve Fund (CBRF). The Department of Law's analysis did not persuade us to 
conclude otherwise. We reiterate that the Department of Revenue's commissioner 
should ensure all CBRF eligible revenues are transferred to the CBRF. 

Finding No. 2018-019 

We have reviewed the Department of Education and Early Development's (DEED) 
response and nothing in the response persuaded us to revise the fmding. DEED 
management does not believe procedural changes are necessary based on updated 
U.S. Department of Agriculture policy guidance effective October 1, 2018. The 
effective date of the guidance is outside the scope of this audit. 
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Finding 2018-021 

- 2 - May 10, 2019 

We have reviewed DEED's response and note that DEED management's corrective 
action does not adequately address the finding. Alaska Statute 14.14.050(b) requires 
the commissioner withhold all payments of State funds after November 15 to a school 
district that fails to file a certified copy of the audit with the department. There is no 
statutory provision that allows the commissioner to waive this requirement. 

Finding No. 2018-023 

We have reviewed the Department of Health and Social Services' (DHSS) response 
and nothing in the response persuaded us to revise the finding. DHSS management does 
not believe a Public Assistance Cost Allocation Plan (P ACAP) amendment is necessary 
for staff providing clerical support outside their normal duties and using a random 
moment time study methodology when recording this time was allowed. We note that 
the staff providing the clerical support were professional class employees whose 
positions were not included in the time study survey and were not identified as allowed 
to charge time to the PACAP-approved method. We reiterate that DHSS' Finance and 
Management Services (FMS) assistant commissioner should strengthen procedures to 
ensure that personal service expenditures charged to federal programs comply with 
federal cost principles. 

Finding No. 2018-027 

We have reviewed DHSS' response and nothing in the response persuaded us to revise 
the finding. We reiterate that DHSS' FMS assistant commissioner should work with 
the Division of Public Assistance (DP A) director to improve the eligibility system 
logical access controls. 

Finding No. 2018-031 

We have reviewed DHSS' response. DHSS management disagreed with the questioned 
costs calculation for one of the erred cases and disagreed with one case being in error. 
We have re-confirmed the audit properly calculated the errors. The additional support 
provided by DHSS management did not persuade us to revise the finding. We 
reiterate that DHSS' DPA director should ensure that procedures are adopted to 
provide for more timely review of eligibility determinations. Procedures should also be 
updated to provide additional clarification for required calculations. In addition, the 
DP A director should ensure that all program staff adhere to program guidelines. 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLATURE DIVISION OF LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 
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Finding No. 2018-033 

- 3 - May 10,2019 

We have reviewed DHSS' response, and nothing in the response persuaded us to revise 
the finding. We reiterate that DHSS' DP A director should ensure staff carry out existing 
subrecipient monitoring procedures and adopt written procedures to ensure timely 
monitoring of the work performed by subrecipients. Additionally, written procedures 
should be established to ensure risk assessments are carried out as required by federal 
regulations. 

Finding No. 2018-046 

We have reviewed the Department of Military and Veterans ' Affairs ' (DMV A) 
response, and nothing in the response persuaded us to revise the fmding. We reiterate 
that DMV A's finance officer should develop and implement written procedures over 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards preparation and review to ensure it is 
accurate, complete, and supported. Additionally, the procedures should include data 
completion verification, supervisory review, and documentation of verification and 
rev1ew. 

Finding No. 2018-053 

We have reviewed the Department ofNatural Resources ' (DNR) response and note that 
the Department of Law's legal analysis was reviewed and considered during the audit 
period as was the legal analysis conducted by Legislative Audit legal counsel. The 
Legislative Audit legal counsel analysis and the review conducted by audit staff 
concluded that all revenues contained in AS 37.13.010(a)(2) are validly dedicated as 
an exception to the anti-dedication clause and expressly permitted by the Permanent 
Fund Amendment to the Alaska Constitution. The AS 37.13.010(a)(2) monies that 
were not deposited into the permanent fund are not available for general use and should 
be recognized as a liability in the general fund. 

Finding No. 2018-054 

We have reviewed DNR's response. Legal analysis provided by the Department ofLaw 
was reviewed and considered during the audit, as was legal analysis provided by the 
Legislative Division of Legal Services. The Legislative Legal Services' analysis was 
rooted in a plain reading of the constitution and concluded that the monies should be 
deposited into the CBRF. The Department of Law's analysis did not persuade us to 
conclude otherwise. We reiterate that the Department of Revenue's commissioner 
should ensure all CBRF eligible revenues are transferred to the CBRF. 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLATURE DIVISION OF LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 



IV - 98 

Members of the Legislative Budget 
and Audit Committee 

Finding No. 2018-064 

-4- May 10, 2019 

We have reviewed the Department ofFish and Game's (DFG) response, and nothing in 
the response persuaded us to revise the finding. DFG management disagrees the effect 
of the finding results in questioned costs, as the negotiated rate is binding once 
approved by the Department of the Interior (DOl). We note that DOl was provided a 
flawed indirect cost rate proposal. If the proposal was correct, a lower rate would have 
been approved by DOl. We reiterate that DFG's Division of Administrative Services 
director should ensure the indirect cost rate calculation is calculated accurately and 
supported by the accounting records. 

Finding No. 2018-066 

We have reviewed DFG's response and nothing in the response persuaded us to revise 
the finding. Auditors could not verify the information provided by DFG as it was 
provided after the audit report date. 

Finding No. 2018-070 

We have reviewed the Alaska International Airport System (AlAS) response to the 
audit and nothing in the response causes us to revise the finding or recommendation. 
The agency states that the delay in issuing the audited financial statements was due to 
a delay in receiving fmancial information from the Depattment of Administration's 
Division of Finance (DOF). We did recognize that DOF contributed to the delay; 
however, we also recognize AlAS staff did not prepare footnote disclosures in a timely 
manner, which also contributed to the late audit. 

The audit adjustments made to correctly report AlAS activity included entries to change 
the draft amounts for certain cash flow statement accounts to reflect the fmal audit as 
well as an adjusting entry to correct OPEB amounts and an adjustment to correct the 
allowance for uncollectible revenues. 

Finding No. 2018-074 

We have reviewed the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation's response and note that 
the Department of Law's legal analysis was reviewed and considered during the audit 
period, as was the legal analysis conducted by Legislative Audit legal counsel. The 
Legislative Audit legal counsel analysis and the review conducted by audit staff 
supported that all revenues contained in AS 37.13.010(a)(2) are validly dedicated as an 
exception to the anti-dedication clause and expressly permitted by the Permanent Fund 
Amendment to the Alaska Constitution. The AS 37.13.010(a)(2) monies that were not 
deposited into the permanent fund are not available for general use and should be 
recognized as a liability in the general fund. 

ALASKA SfATE LEGISLATURE DIVISION OF LEGISLATIVE AUDIT 
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In summary, we reaffirm the findings and recommendations presented in this report. 

ALASKA STATE LEGISLATURE 

Sincerely, 

Kris Curtis, CPA, CISA 
Legislative Auditor 

DIVISION OF L EGISLATIVE AUDIT 
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A 
 AAC 

ACF 
ACHIA 
ACS 
ADP 
AEA 
AGDC 
AHCC 
AHE 
AHFC 
AIAS 
AIBMH 
AIDEA 
AIDS 
AIGA 
AIP 
AK 
AKSAS 
ALAE 
ALDER 
AMBBA 
AMHTA 
APF 
APFC 
ARHCT 
ARIES 
ARMB 
ARNG 
ARRC 
ARW 
AS 
ASCA 
ASD 

Alaska Administrative Code or Alaska Aerospace Corporation 
Administration for Children and Families 
Alaska Comprehensive Health Insurance Association 
Alaska Court System 
Automated Data Processing 
Alaska Energy Authority 
Alaska Gasline Development Corporation 
Alaska Housing Capital Corporation 
Alaska Health Enterprise 
Alaska Housing Finance Corporation 
Alaska International Airport System 
Alaska Incident Business Management Handbook 
Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority 
Acquired Immunodeficiency Virus Syndrome 
Alaska Insurance Guaranty Association 
Airport Improvement Program 
Alaska  
Alaska State Accounting System 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses 
Alaska Data Enterprise Reporting 
Alaska Municipal Bond Bank Authority 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 
Alaska Permanent Fund 
Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 
Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust 
Alaska’s Resource for Integrated Eligibility Services 
Alaska Retirement Management Board 
Army National Guard 
Alaska Railroad Corporation 
Alaska Railroad Workers 
Alaska Statute 
Alaska State Council on the Arts 
Administrative Services Director 
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ASLC 
ASMI 
ATDA 

Alaska Student Loan Corporation
Alaska Seafood Marketing Institute 
American Train Dispatchers Association 

B 
 BFY 

BLM 
Budget Fiscal Year
Bureau of Land Management 

C 
 CAFR 

CAP 
CBR 
CBRF 
CCDF 
CCPO 
CF 
CFDA 
CFO 
CFR 
CHIP 
CIP 
CISA 
COP 
CPA 
CPP 
CSRS 
CSSD 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Corrective Action Plan 
Constitutional Budget Reserve 
Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund (Alaska) 
Child Care and Development Fund 
Child Care Program Office 
Conversion Factor 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Chief Financial Officer 
Code of Federal Regulations 
Children’s Health Insurance Program 
Construction in Progress 
Certified Information Systems Auditor 
Certificate of Participation 
Certified Public Accountant 
Centralized Personnel Plan 
Civil Service Retirement System 
Child Support Services Division 

D 
 DAS 

DBUL 
DCCED 
DCP 
DCRA 
DEC 
DEED 

Division of Administrative Services
Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
Division of Community and Regional Affairs 
Department of Environmental Conservation (Alaska) 
Department of Education and Early Development 
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DFG 
DGS 
DHS 
DHSS 
DLA 
DLWD 
DMVA 
DNR 
DOA 
DOC 
DOD 
DOF 
DOI 
DOP 
DOPLR 
DOR 
DOTPF 
DPA 
DPS 
DRB 
DSS 

Department of Fish and Game (Alaska)
Division of General Services 
Department of Homeland Security 
Department of Health and Social Services (Alaska) 
Division of Legislative Audit 
Department of Labor and Workforce Development (Alaska) 
Department of Military and Veterans’ Affairs (Alaska) 
Department of Natural Resources (Alaska) 
Department of Administration (Alaska) 
Department of Corrections (Alaska) 
Department of Defense 
Division of Finance 
Division of Insurance 
Division of Personnel 
Division of Personnel and Labor Relations 
Department of Revenue (Alaska) 
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 
Division of Public Assistance 
Department of Public Safety (Alaska) 
Division of Retirement and Benefits 
Division of Support Services 

E 
 ECIO 

EFF 
EIS 
EPA 
EPLS 
ETA 

External Chief Investment Officer
Emergency Firefighter 
Eligibility Information Services 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Excluded Parties List System 
Employment and Training Administration 

F 
 FAIN 

FDIC 
FERC 
FFATA 
FFELP 

Federal Award Identification Number
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
Federal Energy and Regulatory Commission 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 
Federal Family Education Loan Program 

V - 41 



 

FFY 
FHWA 
FI 
FIFO 
FISP 
FMO 
FMS 
FNS-10 
FX 
FY 

Federal Fiscal Year
Federal Highway Administration 
Food Instrument 
First In First Out 
Facilities Inventory and Support Plan 
Facility Maintenance Office 
Finance and Management Services 
Food and Nutrition Service Report of School Program Operations 
Foreign Currency 
Fiscal Year 

G 
 GAAP 

GAM 
GAO 
GASB 
GASBS 
GeFONSI 
GOV 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Group Annuity Mortality 
Government Accountability Office 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 
General Fund and Other Non-Segregated Investment 
Office of the Governor (Alaska) 

H 
 HCS 

HHS 
HRA 
HRM 

Health Care Services
Health and Human Services 
Healthcare Reimbursement Arrangement Plan 

I 
 IAF 

ICRP 
IEVS 
IF 
IMC 
IRIS 
ISF 
ISP 
IT 

International Airport Fund
Indirect Cost Rate Proposal 
Income Eligibility and Verification System 
Infrastructure 
Intertie Management Committee 
Integrated Resource Information System 
Information Services Fund 
Information Security Policies 
Information Technology 
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ITB Invitation to Bid
 

J 
 JRS Judicial Retirement System

L 
 LAW 

LEA 
LIBOR 
LLC 

Department of Law (Alaska)
Local Education Agency 
London Interbank Offered Rate  
Limited Liability Company 

M 
 MAGI 

MCA 
MD&A 
MOC1 
MOU 
MSA 

Modified Adjusted Gross Income
Master Cooperative Agreement 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Mustang Operations Center 1, LLC 
Memorandum of Understanding 
Master Settlement Agreement and Final Judgment 

N 
 NAV 

NGB 
NGMOMP 
NGNMRS 
NGR 
NIST 
NOAA 
NPR 
NRSRO 
NTSC 

Net Asset Value
National Guard Bureau 
National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Project 
National Guard and Alaska Naval Militia Retirement System 
National Guard Regulations 
National Institute of Standards and Technology 
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
National Petroleum Reserve 
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization 
Northern Tobacco Securitization Corporation 

O 
 OA 

OAD 
OAH 
OD&D 

Outside Auditor
Obligating Award Document 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
Occupational Death and Disability 
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OIT 
O&M 
OPEB 
ORP 

Office of Information Technology
Operations and Maintenance 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 
UA Optional Retirement Plan – Defined Contribution 

P 
 PACAP 

PERS 
PERS-DB 
PERS-DCR 
PMC 
P.O. 
PPHF 
PRPA 
PSA 
PVE 

Public Assistance Cost Allocation Plan
Public Employees’ Retirement System 
PERS – Defined Benefit 
PERS – Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Project Management Committee 
Post Office 
Prevention and Public Health Fund 
Postretirement Pension Adjustment 
Power Sales Agreement 
Petroleum Violation Escrow 

R 
 RBRVS 

RCA 
RHF 
RLF 
RMP 
RSA 
RSI 

Resource-Based Relative Value Scale
Regulatory Commission of Alaska 
Retiree Health Fund 
Revolving Loan Fund 
Retiree Medical Plan 
Reimbursable Service Agreement 
Required Supplementary Information 

S 
 SAM 

SBJPA 
SBRF 
SBS 
SEFA 
SIC 
SIFMA 
SIR 
SLA 

System of Award Management
Small Business Job Protection Act 
Statutory Budget Reserve Fund 
Supplemental Benefits System 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Synthetic Investment Contract 
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 
Self-Insured Retention 
Session Laws of Alaska 
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SNAP 
STD 
SWCAP 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Sexually Transmitted Disease 
Statewide Cost Allocation Plan 

T 
 TANF 

TAPS 
TIPS 
TRS 
TRS-DB 
TRS-DCR 
TSA 
TSR 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Trans-Alaska Pipeline System 
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 
Teachers’ Retirement System 
TRS – Defined Benefit 
TRS – Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Treasury State Agreement 
Tobacco Settlement Revenue 

U 
 UA 

UCF 
UI 
U.S. 
USC 
USDA 
USDHHS 
USDHS 
USDOD 
USDOE 
USDOI 
USDOL 
USDOT 
USFS 
USPFO 
UTU 

University of Alaska
Unemployment Compensation Fund 
Unemployment Insurance 
United States 
United States Code 
U.S. Department of Agriculture 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
U.S. Department of Defense 
U.S. Department of Education 
U.S. Department of the Interior 
U.S. Department of Labor 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
U.S. Forest Service 
United States Property and Fiscal Office 
United Transportation Union 

V 
 VE Value Engineering
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W 
 WIC Women, Infants, and Children
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